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Dear Shareholders

he year 2012 was considered an excifing year for Business

Online PCL. (BOL) One of the most significant developments
was the opportunity granted by the Department of Business
Development, Ministry of Commerce, o renew the Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) on the provision of business information.
The renewal of the MOU as well as the joint signing of other
related agreements, has resulted in the extension of the
current agreement for another 20 years from 2016 to 2035.
This is a good news, not only for BOL, but also for all of our
customers, since we would be able to continuously rely on
this crucial information to support our customers’ decision
making process. The company commits itself to striving for
excellence in the development and attainment of critical
information and business insights to create long-term values
for our customers, both in the public and private sectors
as well as financial institutions. We believe that accurate and
pertinent information will play an important part in sustainable

economic development of a nation.

At the end of 2012, the company had finished the final touch

of its new service, namely ‘SMELink’ under the concept

V- aser

(Mr. Noravat Suwarn)
Chairman of the Board

“Simple Customer Management, Easy Access to Fund”. It
is an innovative tool that links existing business information
with our customers’ debtor profiles. This would give SMEs
comprehensive understanding of their debtors while effectively
managing associated risks. Moreover, BOL plans to collaborate
with major banks to offer loans for SMEs via this new service.
The official launch date for SMELink is scheduled in the first
quarter of 2013.

BOL's consolidated operating result for the year 2012 saw a fotal
revenue of 381.04 million Baht and profit affer tax of 85.41
million Baht, a decrease of 7.73% and 0.96% respectively
when compared with 2011. This mainly caused by the decrease
in revenue from government projects. Nonetheless, the revenue
of the company’s core businesses, such as Corpus and DSS,

still enjoyed continual growth.

BOL would like to take this opportunity to thank our customers,
partners, and shareholders for their valuable suggestions and

continual support to the company’s operation and other activities.

(Mr. Jack Min Intanate)
Executive Chairman
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Mr. Noravat Suwarn Age 72

Chairman of the Board

Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (0.49%)

Duration of Directorship 10 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

* Master of Science (Ag. Econ.), University of Wisconsin-Madison, USA
¢ BA (Econ) Thammasat University

¢ Certificate National Defence College (Class 35)

e Certificate Senior Executive Program (Class 11)

¢ Certificate The Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) 12/2005 (IOD)
* Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)

¢ Certificate Director Certification Program (DCP) 15/2003 (IOD)

¢ Certificate Finance for Non-Finance Director (FN) 2003 (IOD)

5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE

¢ 2003-Present Chaiman of the Board

Business Online Public Company Limited

Director Audit & Evaluation Committee

Ministry of Tourism and Sports

Chairman of the Board KSK Insurance (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
IT City Public Company Limited

® 2006-Present

e 2003-Present
o 2002-Present

Mr. Jack Min Intanate Age 58

Director & Executive Chairman

Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (6.95%)

Duration of Directorship 10 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

e Honorary Doctoral Degree of Laws, Dominican University of California, USA
PhD in Science (Honorary) Information Technology for Management,
Mahasarakam University

Bachelor (Honorary) of Science, Engineering and Agricultural, Rojamangala
University of Technology Thanyaburi

Bachelor of Architecture, Fu Hsing Institute of Technology (Taiwan)
Certificate Thailand Insurance Leadership Program Class 1/2011,

Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)

Certificate, The Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) 12/2005 (IOD)
Certificate, Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)

5 YEARS" WORK EXPERIENCE
¢ 2003-Present Director & Executive Chairman
Business Online Public Company Limited
2011-Present Chairman iBOL Co., Ltd.
2008-Present Director ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.
2006-Present Chairman D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
2000-Present Director National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.
1996-Present Director & Executive Chairman [T City Public Company Limited
1995-Present Director Core & Peak Co., Ltd.
1989-Present Director & Executive Chairman ARIP Public Company Limited
1987-Present Director Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont Age 49

Director

Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (0.34%)

Duration of Directorship 10 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

¢ Master of Business Administration, University of Scranfon, USA.

¢ Bachelor of Commerce, Chulalongkorn University

e Bachelor of Business Administration, Sukhothai Thammathirat University
¢ Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)

5 YEARS" WORK EXPERIENCE

2003-Present Director Business Online Public Company Limited
2012-Present Director ARAC Co., Ltd.

2010-Present Director ARIP Public Company Limited

2008-Present Director ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.

2002-Present Director Anet Co., Ltd.

2000-Present Director Anew Corporation Co., Ltd.

1999-Present Director Core & Peak Co., Ltd.

1999-Present Director ARIT Co., Ltd.

1996-Present Financial Controller Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.
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¢ Drexel University, Pennsylvania, USA, Finance and Economics

« iszmdtlaiing 1Agenns Director Accredited Program (DAP) (95/2555)
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* 2549-0330u Vice President, D&B Asia Pacific Partnership

e 2544-2549 Vice President, D&B Asia Pacific, Data & Operations
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Suouti@unssumis 7T (2549 - Jx3du)

nsAnw

MBA, Oxford Brookes University Business School (U.K.)

FCCA, Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountant (UK.)
FCPA, Fellow of The Institute of Certified Public Accountant of Singapore
ASEP, Advanced Senior Executive Program, SASIN/Kellogg School of
Management of Northwestern University (U.S.A.)

lIA, The Institute of Internal Auditors (U.S.A.)

FCPA, Fellow of Cerfified Pratising Accountants of Australia

o lsznAtiating Tasanis Director Accredited Program (57/2549)
Uszaunisaigiounds 5 U

o 2549-0n0u NSNS LFEN
o 2555-0230u NSNS LFEN
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Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich Age 51
Director & General Manager
Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (0.48%)
Duration of Directorship 10 Years (2003-Present)
Educations
e Master of Applied Statistics (Computer Science, HONS.), NIDA
« Bachelor of Arfs (Economics, 2™ Class Hons.),

University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce
e Cerfificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (I0D)
e Cerfificate Fostering a Board and Management Team 2005
e Cerfificate Executive Development Program (EDP) Class 6
5 YEARS'" WORK EXPERIENCE
¢ 2003-Present Director & General Manager

Business Online Public Company Limited

e 2011-Present Director iBOL Co., Ltd.
¢ 2006-Present Director D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon Age 46

Director

Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (0.00%)

Duration of Directorship 1 Year (2011- Present)

Educations

e Drexel University Pennsylvania, USA, Finance and Economics
e Cerfificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 95/2012 (IOD)
5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE

e 2011-Present Director Business Online Public Company Limited
e 2006-Present Vice President, D&B Asia Pacific Partnership

e 2001-2006 Vice President, D&B Asia Pacific, Data & Operations

Mr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng Age 46

Director

Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (0.00%)

Duration of Directorship 7 Years (2006-Present)

Educations

MBA, Oxford Brookes University Business School (U.K.)

FCCA., Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountant (U.K.)
FCPA, Fellow of The Institute of Certified Public Accountant of Singapore
ASEP, Advanced Senior Executive Program, SASIN/Kellogg School of

Management of Northwestern University (U.S.A.)

IIA, The Institute of Internal Auditors (U.S.A.)

FCPA, Fellow of Certified Pratising Accountants of Australia
Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 57/2006 (IOD)
5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE

o 2006-Present
¢ 2012-Present
e 2011-Present
o 2008-Present
 2006-Present
o 2002-Present
o 2000-Present

Director Business Online Public Company Limited
Director Lease IT Co., Ltd.

Director ARIP Public Company Limited

Director ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.

Director Dataone Asia (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Director SVOA Public Company Limited

Director Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.
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« VENGATELEMNITLALGY anfiAnennisnatanu mdngas 1nn.) i:uﬁ 4
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Mr. Anant Tangtatswas Age 62

Independent Director & Chairman of Audit Committee

Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (0.09%)

Duration of Directorship 3 Years (2010-Present)

Educations

¢ MBA (Finance), Columbia University, NYC, USA

* BA (Economics), Thammasat University

* National Defence College (Joint Government-Private Sectors
Program-Class 377)

¢ Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2010 (IOD)

5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE

¢ 2010-Present Independent Director & Chairman of Audit Committee
Business Online Public Company Limited

e 2012-Present Independent Director & Audit Committee Member
SVOA Public Company Limited

* 2009-2010 Director Crown Seal Public Company Limited

e 2005-Present Director Green Spot Co., Ltd.

Ms. Manida Zinmerman Age 46
Independent Director & Audit Committee
Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (0.60%)
Duration of Directorship 10 Years (2003-Present)
Educations
* MBA Assumption University
¢ LL.M., Columbia University
e LL.B., Thammasat University
¢ Graduate Diploma Business Law, Thammasat University
¢ Certificate the Director Certification Program (DCP)
5 YEARS WORK EXPERIENCE
o 2003-Present Independent Director & Audit Committee
Business Online Public Company Limited
o Present Partner Hunton & Williams (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
® 2006-2007 Associate General Counsel
True Corporation Public Company Limited

Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Age 59

Independent Director & Audit Committee

Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (0.10%)

Duration of Directorship 5 Years (2008-present)

Educations

¢ Bachelor of Science, Chiangmai University

e Certificate Senior Executive Program (Capital Market Academy) Class 4

e Certifcate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2009 (IOD)

5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE

o 2008-Present Independent Director & Audit Committee
Business Online Public Company Limited

e 2011-Present Senior Executive Vice President, Technology Division
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

* 2000-2011  Executive Vice President, Technology Division
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
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Mr. Jack Min Intanate Age 58

Director & Executive Chairman
Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (6.95%)
Duration of Directorship 10 Years (2003-Present)
Educations

Honorary Doctoral Degree of Laws, Dominican University of Califomia, USA

PhD in Science (Honorary) Information Technology for Management,
Mahasarakam University
Bachelor (Honorary) of Science, Engineering and Agricultural, Rajamangala

University of Technology Thanyaburi
Bachelor of Architecture, Fu Hsing Institute of Technology (Taiwan)
Certificate Thailand Insurance Leadership Program Class 1/2011,

Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)
Certificate, The Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) 12/2005 (IOD)
Certificate, Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)

5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE
e 2003-Present Director & Executive Chairman
Business Online Public Company Limited
2011-Present Chairman iBOL Co., Ltd.
2008-Present Director ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.
2006-Present Chairman D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
2000-Present Director National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.
1996-Present Director & Executive Chairman IT City Public Company Limited
1995-Present Director Core & Peak Co., Ltd.
1989-Present Director & Executive Chairman ARIP Public Company Limited
1987-Present Director Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.
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Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich Age 51
Director & General Manager

Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (0.48%)
Duration of Executive 10 Years (2003-Present)
Educations

Master of Applied Statistics (Computer Science, Hons.), NIDA

Bachelor of Arts (Economics, 2™ Class Hons.), University of the Thai Chamber
of Commerce
Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)

Certificate Fostering a Board and Management Team 2005

Certificate Executive Development Program (EDP) Class 6
5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE
e 2003-Present Director & General Manager
Business Online Public Company Limited
e 2011-Present Director iBOL Co., Ltd.
e 2006-Present Director D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon Age 41

Deputy General Manager-Sales, Marketing & Business

Development, Company Secretary

Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (0.48%)

Duration of Executive 10 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

¢ Master of Business Administration University of South Australia

¢ Bachelor of Science, Major in Chemical Industry,
King Mongkut Institute of Technology Ladkrabang

e Certificate Thailand Insurance Leadership Program Class 1/2011,
Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)

¢ Certificate the Company Secretary Program (CSP)

5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE

e 2003-Present Deputy General Manager-Sales, Marketing & Business Development

Business Online Public Company Limited
e 2011-Present Director iBOL Co., Ltd.
e 2006-Present Director D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
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Ms. Surat Rithirong Age 55

Deputy General Manager-Operation & System
Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (0.20%)
Duration of Executive 10 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

* Master of Applied Statistics (Computer Science), NIDA
¢ Bachelor of Stafistics, Silpakorn University

5 YEARS' WORK EXPERIENCE
¢ 2003-Present Deputy General Manager-Operation & System
Business Online Public Company Limited
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Ms. Kanyapan Buranarom Age 39

Deputy General Manager-Finance & Accounting

Shareholding Percentage as of 28 Dec 2012 (0.18%)

Duration of Executive 10 Years (2003-Present)

Educations

e Master of Business Administration, Major in Management,
Srinakarin Tharavirot University

* Bachelor of Accounting, Bangkok University

¢ Bachelor of Business Administration, Sukhothai Thammathirat University

5 YEARS” WORK EXPERIENCE

¢ 2003-Present Deputy General Manager-Finance & Accounting
Business Online Public Company Limited

Director iBOL Co., Ltd.

¢ 2006-Present Director D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)

o Present

o Present
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
gayanmainistulagasy

(KUDY : Wuun)
AmSul AusasuR 31 SudcAu JUNISINUSOU JUNISINUIAWN:USENY
2555 | 2554 2553 2555 | 2554 2553
Aunindaaw 425870 | 389761 327,826 | 421937 | 389,571 327934
yiAusay 156,748 | 136932 93563 | 153413 | 136619 93533
druresgioiu 269,122 | 252,829 234,263 | 268524 | 252952 234,400
l5ieu 381,044 | 412985 320,762 | 381028 | 412961 326,758
selfiannsnenazLianIs 367,732 | 401,668 316452 | 367,732 | 401,668 316,452
rinledudu 196,546 | 188,332 163,728 | 196,546 | 188332 163,728
inlsangnaunii 112,075 | 116819 98975 | 111,353 | 116,804 98,905
Mlegna 85408 | 86237 72427 | 84686 | 86222 72357

SasAUNWNISNU

Fnandaurinlsdusu o) 53.45 | 4689  51.74 53.45 4689 5174
gnsraaurinlsans %) 2241 | 2088 2217 | 2223 | 2088 2214
ARINAIUNARALUNUARAUNTNE (%) 2005 | 2213 22.09 20.07 2213 2206
SnTIaILLARELUNUABAILUBIENIVU (%) 3174 | 3411 3092 31.54 3409 3087
@"mﬂa'3u§um§wﬂ’wguﬁﬂuﬁiwﬁaumuﬁau ) 2.03 2.20 2.30 2.03 2.20 2.29
é’mméqumﬁ%uﬁiaéqumméaaﬁu ) 0.59 0.54 0.40 0.57 0.54 0.40

IJSguingudoyacioRu (Un)

intestetuduiiugu 0.11 on 0.09 0.11 0.11 0.09
f-ﬁu'auﬁumﬁzy—nuﬁaaﬁLLa:L?ﬂmhs:LLﬁa @ 787.50 | 78509 77355 | 78750 | 78509  773.55
yarfins oty anm 010 | 010 010 0.10 010 010
yampuiyneu wam 034 | 032 030 0.34 032 030
Ruifunaane @uum 7075 | 69.65 6510 | 7075 | 69.65  65.10
* Quifuwamaviu W) 004 | 009 009 0.04 009 009

*lull 28555 BOL UszniAdneNuifunaszninenia uaz 0.04 UM EIAMASUAZ 0.10 UM AnNaNITAMNTEuIL
o o o a o 4 a v Vv

dmfuan 6 ineuusn dszand 2555 (lustuiduilunatszdand 2555 GesaniseudAainyteiu lunisdszyu
vy v Qs o <

yoanuandylszanl 2566)
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)
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For the year ended December 31, Consolidated The Company Only
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Total Assets 425,870 | 389,761 327,826 | 421,937 | 389,671 327,934
Total Liabilities 156,748 | 136,932 93,663 | 153,413 | 136,619 93,533
Total Equity 269,122 | 252,829 234,263 | 268,524 | 252,952 234,400
Total Revenues 381,044 | 412,985 326,762 | 381,028 | 412,961 326,758
Revenue from sales and services 367,732 | 401,668 316,452 | 367,732 | 401,668 316,452
Gross Profit 196,546 | 188,332 163,728 | 196,546 | 188,332 163,728
Profit before tax 112,075 | 116,819 98975 | 111,353 | 116,804 98,905
Net Profit 85,408 86,237 72,427 84,686 86,222 72,357
Financial Ratio
Gross Profit Margin (%) 53.45 46.89 51.74 53.45 46.89 5174
Net Profit Margin (%) 2241 20.88 22.17 22.23 20.88  22.14
Refurn on Total Assefs (%) 20.05 2213 22.09 20.07 2213 22.06
Return on Equity (%) 31.74 34.11 30.92 31.54 34.09  30.87
Current Ratio (times) 2.03 2.20 2.30 2.03 2.20 2.29
Debt to Equity Ratio (times) 0.59 0.54 0.40 0.57 0.54 0.40
Comparison of Information per share (Baht)
Basic Earning per share 0.11 0.1 0.09 0.11 0.11 0.09
Number of shares-lssued and paid-up (share : Milion) | 787.50 |  785.09  773.65 | 787.50 | 785.09 773.55
Par Value per share (Baht) 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Book Value per share (Baht) 0.34 0.32 0.30 0.34 0.32 0.30
Dividend payment (Million Baht) 70.75 69.65  65.10 70.75 69.65  65.10
* Dividend per share (Baht) 0.04 0.09 0.09 0.04 0.09 0.09

*In 2012, Company’s inferim dividend payment at the rate of Baht 0.04 per share (par value of 0.10 Baht)
was approved based on its operating results for the first é-month period of 2012 (excl. annual dividend

payment subject to Annual General Meeting 2013).
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REVENUE COMPARISONS 2012

wWsouingusiglad 2555 mswWsguiguadtagn1inisdudinsut 2551-2555
(Jun1sGulawi:usyn)
s19lasou

381,028
KUJY : WUUIN
‘ “ﬁ?f” 381,028

326,758

27_5'_61 3 269,060

s1eldsouamsul

2399

] A
51 52 53 54 55

mMlsgnsraimeoula

84,686

86222 e KUY 1 WUUIN
® uSmisdola 257,258 : 68%
) USMSENUNISUSHISADUIEE] 81,237 : 21%
® USNISBUY 29,526 : 8%
® swldduq (sreldnonbusu Guduvasu uadus) 13,007 : 3%
54 55
dunsweisou
421,937
421937 MU2E 1 WuUUIN
389,571
301,161 302,404 327'934
s1oldsouansul
7
51 52 53 54 55
douvasdtioRu
268,524
segs2s U8 1 WUUIN
252,952
® usmisdowa 247,201 : 60% 234,400

185,656 221,508

) USMSENUNISUSHISADIUIEE) 27,225 : 7%
o U§ms§'uq 127,665 : 30%
® swldduq (sreldaoniesu Guduuasu uadus) 10,870 : 3%
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FINANCIAL COMPARISON FOR THE YEAR 2008 - 2012
(FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE COMPANY ONLY)
TOTAL REVENUES

381,028

412,961 Unit : Thousand Baht
.—'.1 381,028

SLUSNSLUNSSUNLS:S

326,758
= 23
275_;6.13 269,060 22
— Z Z
TOTAL REVENUES 23
FOR THE YEAR § @
2 O 1 2 .
Year - — - - L - S O
08 09 10 1 12 3 <
o0 3
NET PROFIT AFTER TAX ER=
2 3
84,686 :t
86222 Unit : Thousand Baht S 2
' 84,686 S .5
237 72,357 o T
® Information Services 257,258 : 68% 70,401 ’
@® Risk Management Service 81,237 : 21%
® Other Services 29,526 : 8%
® OtherIncome (Interest & Dividend & Other) 13,007 : 3% .
3 =
2 2
Year
08 09 10 11 12
TOTAL ASSETS
421,937
Unit : Thousand Baht
421,937 L
e @
7 B
c 9
2 o
< 5
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Year

389,571
301,161 302404 327,934
TOTAL REVENUES
FOR THE YEAR
12

08 09 10 11
EQUITY

268,024

Unit : Thousand Baht

268,524
252,952

® Information Services 247,201 : 60% 234,400

. . 185,656 221,508
® Risk Management Service 27,225 : 7% -_—
® Other Services 127,665 : 30%
® Other Income (Interest & Dividend & Other) 10,870 : 3%

Year
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(Hud® : un)

o R

§ JunIsusou JuNIsulawI=NINIS

2 2555 2554 2555 2554
Aunswg
AunsSwyryuIdyuU
Quapuazsiensiieustuan 7 48,423 827 5,347,148 46,282,007 58,219,650
qrviiniedn 8 89,490,346 72,886,668 89,490,346 72,886,668
$elRANTL 139,840,661 131,279,094 139,840,661 131,279,094
aum%’wémuﬁauﬁlu 15,612,388 23,595,884 15,235,653 23,416,390
saudundndvyuieu 293,367,222 287.108,794 290,848,667 285,801,802
AunSwdlrkyuidou
Suehnsuensfiimszandssiu o 17,000,100 17,000,100 17,000,100 17,000,100
Ruawululsimdas 10 - - 13,099,930 5.599.930
Ruawulusiney " 30,605,894 30,404,981 30,000,000 30,000,000
Ruasuszezemau 12 27.864,111 27,864,111 27,864,111 27,864,111
audiulgeenasuazginel 13 27,152,800 12,179,071 23,407,953 10,946,738
Aundwd luiism 14 28,194,606 13,869,482 18,083,403 11,023,981
Aunindlavuioudu 1,685,322 1,334,576 1,632,722 1,334,576
saudunine livyuidau 132,502,893 102,652,321 131,088,219 103,769,436
SuAUNINE 425,870,115 389,761,115 421,936,886 389,571,238
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(Kude : u1n)
- ) i ) ~
< JUNISWJUsIy JUuNIsUuula@wItNiINIS
XD
S
g 2555 2554 2555 2554
rUAUNIA:Ad UZOVGTioRU
KUAUKUUIBYU
Gu{jﬁm:ﬂ:gmmamﬁ'umsﬁu 15 | 36,369,000 - | 36,369,000 -
BvtinnsAuaziimiiau 16 | 22739317 49,207,800 | 22675855 | 49,022,087
AMHRUlAANAE 11,595,764 14,857,055 | 11595764 | 14,857,055
wﬁaumuﬁﬂuﬁlu
selATUANTA 41813322 | 38617464 | 41813322 | 38617464
AnanslszlguiAneans 11,747 589 11,564,194 | 11,747,589 | 11,564,194
Ausnaviaum Ly dnns ity
At simungngznnelunile) 17 2,527,501 - 1,384,609 .
'fS'uq 17.971,329 15919400 | 17,492,402 | 15,792,440
ifawﬁﬁuwguﬁﬂu 144,763,822 | 130,165913 | 143,078,541 | 129,853,240
KUAUTUKYUBYU
dnsaanatlszlguiszezaniunantiney 18 7.710,993 6,765,969 7,710,993 6,765,969
wiAumLEYENNe Ry - qnaandIu
fidarmumensz nneluniled 17 4,272,821 - 2,623,681 -
ifawﬁﬁuiﬁmquﬁﬂu 11,983,814 6765969 | 10,334,674 6,765,969
sruviiay 156,747,636 | 136,931,882 | 153,413215 | 136,619,209
doueovdiioRu
NUITAUYU 19
nuaanzileu
viuanilny 787,500,000 YU yamiiuaz 0.10 LM 78750000 | 78,750,000 | 78,750,000 | 78,750,000
NUBDNIMUNEUAZTNT T ALYAAILE?
viuanily 787,500,000 iU Yamiiuaz 0.10 LM
(2554 1 Yiuaniiy 785,094,700 ViU
Yamvuaz 0.10 L) 78,750,000 | 78509470 | 78,750,000 | 78,509,470
aruiuyaAuaniiy 77049671 | 75749786 | 77149671 | 75749.786
finlsazau
ANATIURY - ANTBIANUNYNLE 20 7,875,000 7,875,000 7,875,000 7,875,000
flaluladnass 105,347,778 | 90694938 | 104,749,000 | 90,817,773
drureaiariuuadLsEn 269,122,449 | 252,829,194 | 268523671 | 252,952,029
a"mfumQﬁéauiﬁﬁamﬂﬁémwmuqmaqu?ﬁmiaa 30 39 - -
saudnngtaru 269,122,479 | 252,829,233 | 208523671 | 252952,029
souviAuLazdILaed RLVN 425870115 | 389,761,115 | 421,936,886 | 389,571,238
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9

(KWuse : uan)
o ) ) i ™
g JUNIsSWUuUsIy JUNISWUULAWITNINIS
5
g 2555 2554 2555 2554
nlsyanu :
s1wld
maiﬁmnmﬂﬁﬁmﬁaHaaaulaﬁ 234,952,579 | 231,283,886 | 234,952,579 | 231,283,886
selFannnnslrsnnsau 132,779,827 | 170,384,422 | 132,779,827 | 170,384,422
el 13311944 | 11316684 | 13295738 | 11,292,255
ERP RN 381,044,350 | 412,984,992 | 381,028,144 | 412,960,563
AFIY 21
AunuNslviLENNg 171,186,838 | 213,336,654 | 171,186,838 | 213,336,654
AnldanalunnsLsnmng 97,150,991 83,028031 | 97800078 | 82,819,469
gauAnlgane 268,337,829 | 296,364,685 | 268986916 | 296,156,123
finlsnauduutisri lsanRuawulunfEmsy
Anldaeniensiiunaz Al danan1#ula 112,706,521 | 116,620,307 | 112,041,228 | 116,804,440
aruutivrinlsantuamuluLdingu 200913 198,651 - .
fnlsnauAnldanantnistunaz Anldnen1#kula 112907434 | 116818958 | 112,041,228 | 116,804,440
Aldananan1s{u (832,683) - (688,081) -
flsnauanldanan1#Rula 112,074,751 | 116,818,958 | 111,353,147 | 116,804,440
A lden#Euls 22 | (26,667,185) | (30,582,418) | (26,667,185) | (30,582,418)
fin ladmutl 85,407 566 86,236,540 84,685,962 86,222,022
ﬁ']‘l‘a‘mmv;uLﬁma%E}ua"\w%’uﬂ - - - -
fnlsrenuiiiaadasaudnivil 85,407,566 86,236,540 | 84,685962 86,222,022
msiuvdurisnanuifaiasesou
a'auﬁﬂumméﬁaﬁummu?ﬁm 85,407,575 | 86236547 | 84685962 | 86,222,022
'a"suﬁ'Lﬂumm%ﬁéquﬁdamﬁamﬂﬁa”]u’w
ANLIANUBILETENE DY ) %)
85,407,566 | 86,236,540
mlsciorRu (Un) 23
ﬁﬁl@ﬁaﬁu%uﬁugwu
ﬁﬂ“l,ia'uuﬁlLﬂumméﬁaﬁummﬁﬁm 0.1 0.1 0.11 0.1
Funuuaniyiiedetinimin G 786,468.218 | 774,717,610 | 786468218 | 774,717,610
misciorudsuaa 23
ﬁﬁ“l,ia'auﬁ'Lﬂummﬁaaﬁumaqﬁﬁm 0.1 0.1 0.11 0.11
‘-Sﬂu’guf/jumﬁmﬁuaﬁaﬁqqﬁqmﬁn (ﬁu) 786,977,297 | 780,868,572 | 786977297 | 780,868,572
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USBN TFIua doulad 91Mia (UKIU) IA:uSengoy
vuliaavnsidagundavasuzovanonu

dwsuduanTuin 31 funnay 2555

(Hu2e : uan)
Jun1sjusou )
douvasdfioRuusdnyg douvoadji
nuiouru | dduliu mlsa:au saudou _:al?gl.ﬁﬂu saudou
Roonua: yaAr  |d0dssudd -| .. | gasddiofu nljgawuma LERWGETAT
d1s:uad ﬁt;mﬁrg drseamu s‘:_‘:}:lg usEnY nuagl.l;::z;? s
nnHUIY
HaAAILYAD DI ‘Tuﬁ' 31 §u1AN 2553 77,355,000 | 69,030,771 7.875,000 | 80,002,273 | 234,263,044 46 234,263,090
maa:ammqn'ﬁLﬂ%‘lﬂuuﬂmu‘mmﬂnﬁﬁ’iﬁiu

mstuiinuatlseleminiinnu munewn 4.11) - - - | (5.893,982)| (5,893.982) - | (5.893.982)
ﬁumﬁ:ﬁaaﬂLﬁ'ﬁumnmﬂﬁw%mﬂua’wﬁty

WARIANS (MR 19) 1,154,470 | 6,719,015 - .| 7.873.485 - 7.873.485
Ruifuwaane (newme 27) - - - [(69.649.900) | (69.649.900) - | (69,649,900)
flsaanuinadasiudmiul - - - | 86,236,547 | 86,236,547 @ | 86236540
HaAAIVAD 0 *Tuﬁ‘ 31 §UAN 2554 78,509,470 | 75,749,786 7,875,000 | 90,694,938 | 252,829,194 39 252,829,233
HaAAIAD DU *Tu‘ﬁ‘ 31 §UNAN 2554 78,509,470 | 75,749,786 7.875,000 | 90,694,938 | 252,829,194 39 252,829,233
ﬁumﬁzyﬁa'aﬂLﬁm%ufmnmﬂ%?m%mu'luﬁﬂﬁn‘;l

WANYANS (MR 19) 240,530 | 1,399,885 - - 1640415 - 1,640,415
Ruilunaine (MUNEiR 27) - - - |(70,754,735) | (70,754,735) - |(70,754,735)
flsnauidaiatasiudniuil - - - | 85.407.575| 85407575 © | 85407506
tonAvae o Sufl 31 Sunnau 2565 78,750,000 | 77,149.671 | 7,875,000 | 105,347,778 | 269,122,449 30 | 269,122,479

MmaL1/1rf!ﬂi:ﬂamumiﬁu@uf\"sumﬁwmmmﬁuﬁ
(Hu2e : uan)
JunisdutawnanNas R
nuauru doutfiu lsasa ,
Roonua: yam1 Jndssuan - R soudou
drs:udd Huanicy d1saanw EiJIUIn vaagtioru
' ) NNHUIE ndss
HAAAINAD U ’3/14“71' 31 §UrAN 2553 77,355,000 69,030,771 7.875,000 80,139,633 234,400,404
nadzanupensiAeunanlenenistyily

mstfufinualszlemininen gunewe) 4.11) - - - (5,893.982) (5,893.982)
ﬁumﬁmﬁaanLﬁu%umnmﬂ%ﬁw%mﬂuzi'wﬁn;

WARYANS (MR 19) 1,154,470 6.719.015 - - 7,873,485
Ruilunaing uneing 27) - - - (69.649,900) (69.649.900)
lsmanuiaafasaudmiul - - - 86,222,022 86,222,022
tanAWEe o Jufl 31 FuAu 2554 78,509,470 75,749,786 7,875,000 90,817,773 252,952,029
tanAWAD o Jufl 31 FumAu 2554 78,509,470 75,749,786 7,875,000 90,817,773 252,952,029
ﬁumﬁzﬁaanLﬁ'uﬁmmmﬂﬁaw%mﬂuéﬁﬁiy

UARNEANE (MLNELNg 19) 240,530 1,399,885 - - 1,640,415
Juifunadne munewme 27) - - - (70,754,735) (70.754,735)
lsanuiiniatasiudmivil - - - 84,685.962 84,685,962
HAAAINAD U ’3’14“71' 31 §U11AN 2555 78,750,000 77,149,671 7,875,000 104,749,000 268,623,671
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(Kuoe : uln)
~
JUNIsSWUuUsIy JUuNISUULlawItNINIS
2555 2554 2555 2554
NSHIANUAQMINAYNSSUANTUNIU
A lenaunis 112,074,751 | 116818958 | 111,353,147 | 116,804,440
UFusnaniansznunnlsnaunsiutuaniu @)
INNANTTUANTUINU
AudBLIAILaTANFAT ML 14608049 | 10039806 | 13256970 9,938,004
AU lnaNnIsIguazAnIme
gunsoluazAunindludsmu 121,461 (55,513) 121,461 (56.513)
Aufiansdenraesdunsng 726,632 939,501 - 1,339,501
m,?jamiﬁaﬂﬂ'wmﬁuamﬂmﬁﬁwﬂaﬂ - - 4,500,000 -
zﬁ’wmﬁmﬁwﬁmﬁm:qm 9,181,859 - 9,181,859 -
aruutirinlsanRuasulutstngu (200,913) (198.651) - -
dngasnalsslauisrazeniuaaniinany 945,024 871,987 945,024 871,987
Emmnumﬂé’mmLLaﬂLﬂﬁlauﬁﬁﬂmﬁmﬁuﬁﬁ‘?q 41,108 86,571 41,108 86,571
iwﬂié’ﬁlmﬁﬂmiﬂé’mmﬂwr}iunuu?nwﬁwf«hﬂ (4,000,000) - | (4.000,000) -
selaRuilung (12,250,000) | (9.646,875) | (12,250,000) | (9.646,875)
Aldanemaniie 832,683 - 688,081 -
panIEsy (687.562) (854,770) (679.775) (830,139
Alsannianssusiiununeunisasundadlu
Funinduazviausiiuan 121,393,092 | 118,001,014 | 123,157,875 | 118,507,976
Funsndaiunuanas (LA ;
Qﬂwﬁma‘ﬁﬁ'u (25,823,532) | (13,388,512) | (25,823,532) | (13,388,512
selAA1eTy (8561567) | (52,382,818) | (8,561,567) | (52,382,818)
%um”wémguﬁauﬁ'u 7925760 | (13,177.863) 8,123,001 | (13,002,380)
AunFndlinyuieudu (350,746) (4,000) (298,146) (4,000
MAUATUNURLIY @AY :
Bmiinsfuaziimiiau (24,046,491) | 28274467 | (28,185421) | 28,118,754
e lAFuAIT 3,195,858 2,258,692 3,195,858 2,258,692
Ananalszlaaninneang 183,395 943,212 183,395 943,212
Wil UMHULSJF;IHSH 2,051,929 4,088,453 5.961,143 3,961,493
NUARAINNANTTUANTLIU 75,967,698 74,612,645 | 77752606 | 75012417
Seneniie (832.683) - (688,081) -
ManHIul (29.928.476) | (29.658,327) | (29.928,476) | (29.658,327)
Rudngnaannianssusniiuenu 45,206,539 44954318 | 47,136,049 | 45,354,090
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(Ku2e : uan)
~
JUNISWJUsIy JUuNIsUuula@wItNiINIS
2555 2554 2555 2554

NS:HIANUAQMNNYNSSUAINU
ﬁuaw;wf’minamm - 17,000,000 - | 17,000,000
Ruananelunsamuluisindas - - | (12,000,000) | (5,000,000
SurhnsunansiiiinnssAndss fuanas - 13,000,000 - 13,000,000
Ruan¥uainnissmieginsal 3,271 55,677 3,271 55,677
%vaaqﬂﬂani (15,683214) | (8,160,147) | (15460294) | (6,829,742)
Fallsunsupeuiinimes (19.681,067) | (4,441,133) | (11,560,150) | (1,593,7565)
NutTunasdy 12,250,000 9,646,875 | 12,250,000 9,646,875
mamﬁﬁu 745,298 763,866 737,511 739,234
Ruangngandiifluwianssuaamu (22365712) | 27,865,138 | (26029.662) | 27,018,289
NILUARNUANIINNANTTUAANIIIU
L“quﬁﬁm:ﬂ:é?umnamﬁ’umﬁﬁmﬁu%u 36,369,000 - | 36,369,000 -
Ruaniuannnslifansauluwansdns

%@ﬁum 110y 1,640,415 7,873,485 1,640,415 7,873,485
e AT At TR SR raeT (1,018,828) - (298,710) -
PMaRuiiung (70,754,735) | (69.649.900) | (70,754,735) | (69.,649,900)
Ruangnalilllufanssudamitu (33,764,148) | (61,776,415) | (33,044,030) | (61.776,415)
ﬁuamu,a:mﬂmﬂﬁauwhf&uamﬁuﬁu(ammqw% (10,923321) | 11,043,041 | (11.937,643) | 10,595,964
RuanuazaanaiieummItuan o Tuaull 50,347,148 | 48,304,107 | 58219650 | 47,623,686
Ruanuazmenadfieurintiuan o Yudud 48423827 | 59347148 | 46282007 | 58219650
ﬁoqans:uaﬁuao|Uo|w0|lTiU|au
semsildleiduananianssusiiviutsznondne

dngaanalszlaiszazenuaawiineny - 5,893,982 - 5,893,982

Bnilendedunsing 1,574,895 - 1,574,895 -
semsladleiuananianssudmitusznoudne

FodunindnelFddmanisdu 7,819,150 - 4,307,000 -

a @ < a &
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Company’s name :  Business Online Public Company Limited
Address : 900/8-10 SVOA Tower 11, 12, 14 Fl., Rama Ill Rd., Bangpongpang. Yannawa, Bangkok 10120
Type of Business : Business Online Public Company Limited provides both online and offline business

information services that include information of registered companies in Thailand,

business news, and business information. Furthermore, BOL also provides comprehensive

solutions such as consulting service including design and develop information management

system, knowledge management system, database system, software, application, financial

analysis, risk analysis, market opportunity analysis and database management.

Company Registered Number

: 0107546000407

Tel. 1 +66 2657 3999 Fax. 1 +66 2657 3900-1
Homepage . https://www.BOL.co.th

Registered capital : 78,750,000 Baht Paid-up capital : 78,750,000 Baht
Par value : 0.10 Baht

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares Ordinary shares : 787,500,000 Ordinary shares

Subsidiary name
Address

Type of Business

: D&B (Thailand) Co., Lid.
: 900/8-10 SVOA Tower Rama Il Rd., Bangpongpang, Yannawa, Bangkok 10120
. International credit reporting & Database activities.

Tel. 1 +66 2657 3939 Fax. 1 +66 2657 3901
Registered capital : 1,000,000 Baht Paid-up capital : 1,000,000 Baht
Par value : 10 Baht

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares Ordinary shares : 100,000 Ordinary shares

Joint Venture name
Address

Type of Business

: ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.
: 131 Ratburana Rd., Ratcburana, Bangkok 10140

: Incorporated and domiciled in Thailand fo principally engage in real estate development business

including investment in land, office building for rental and to render property management
services to shareholders and other customers.

Registered capital : 150,000,000 Baht Paid-up capital : 150,000,000 Baht
Par value : 10 Baht

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares Ordinary shares : 15,000,000 Ordinary shares

Subsidiary name : iBOL Co.,, Lid.

(Has received investment support by Board of Investment (BOI) under category 5.8 software, Card number 2282(7)/2554 and

received certificate from SEI (Software Engineering Institute) passed evaluation CMMI-Dev V.1.3 Level 3)

Address

Type of Business

: 900/21 25 Fl., Rama lIl Rd., Bangpongpang, Yannawa, Bangkok 10120
. Developing an integrated computer system and providing data services to businesses

(License or Sublicense) ‘rhrough various types of software; Software as a Service (Saas) or
Software on Demand.

Tel. L +66 2657 3988 Fax. 1 +66 2657 3900-1
Registered capital : 25,000,000 Baht Paid-up capital : 21,000,000 Baht
Par value : 10 Baht

Type and amount of Outstanding Shares Ordinary shares : 2,500,000 Ordinary shares

Investor Relations : ir@bol.co.th

e Mr. Chaiyapom Kiatnuntavimon
e Ms. Kanyapan Buranarom
e Ms. Srisunun Anuchornphan

Other releveant information

Share Regjistrar

Tel.
Auditor

Tel.

Company Secretary/Deputy General Manager-Sales, Marketing & Business Development
Deputy General Manager-Financial & Accounting
Assistant Company Secretary

. Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building, Rachadapisek Rd., Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110

© 466 2229 2888, +66 2596 9000 Fax. 1 +66 2832 4994-6
: Ms. Siriwan Suratepin - C.P.A.(Thailand), Registration No. 4604

Ernst & Young Office : 193/136-137, 33 Fl., Lake Ratchada Office Complex Ratchadapisek Rd.,
Bangkok 10110 Thailand

L +66 2264 0777 Fax. 1 +66 2264 0789-90

S1WVUUs:9d 2555
Annual Report 2012 93

S3AILO3rgo SsaNIsnd
-NOILVINHO4NI TVYINI9



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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During the past year, BOL continues the commitment to serve the society whether directly
or indirectly. Through our participation, we are able to see that business and society can exist
alongside each other and we are proud to be a part of this. Our activities include the followings:

e Card for You’ project of The Better Thailand Foundation. This is our 10" year of support for this program
which aims to support the education and increase living standards among youth through art, and activities
which is open to everyone. This also serves as an arena for disable and underprivileged children to meet
and realize their sense of pride and creativity while instilling the awareness of giving. For 2012, the activity
is under the theme ‘The Gift of Culture’ from which the work of the award winner is used in 2013 new

year card.

¢ Donation of scholarships to Thong Fah Chuay Khon Yark and Wissukam foundations on the 92"
Anniversary of the Ministry of Commerce

e Co-hosted the merit-making ceremony with the Ministry of Commerce in which the company donated
money fowards the construction of a royal monastery at Chin Wararam Temple

94 S1vuds:9d 2555
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Co-hosted the merit-making ceremony with National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd. at Pong Yang Chalermprakiat

Temple, Chiang Mai

Donation fo support Klong 11 Dog Refuge on the 90" Anniversary of the Department of Business

Development

Activities and donation of scholarships to Father Ray Foundation, a charity that helps disadvantaged or

handicapped children under the motto "We're the light of hope for children and handicapped people’
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

BOL is determined to be the leading provider of information that has been thoroughly analysed and
validated to improve customers’ decision-making process. BOL continuously develops and updates its
existing databases. The company never ceases to search for valuable information from additional sources
while improving our computer systems so that we could deliver continuous service.  Through a proprietary
process, the company has added value to the database by analysing and displaying them in a form of
score and indicators for use in reducing business risks and enhancing more opportunities. In addition, BOL
has aimed to expand its products and services to international markets.

The company’s main target group is corporate group, which can be divided into 3 main groups as follows:
1. Financial Institutions
2. Private Businesses and Industries

3. Public Organizations

Customers mostly use our services to support their corporate decisions and as a tool to evaluate
as well as manage risks associated with business transactions. BOL's services also help customers to better
manage their market opportunities and enhance revenue performance.

Moreover, the company is developing a product that perform complex data analysis to help
small businesses evaluate trade credit. It allows SMEs to make timely, standardized, accurate decisions.
The product is based on information derived from statistical and mathematical methods (Score) and
Paydex a weighted average index calculated from payment information. Both Score and Paydex are
key engines resulting in better frade credit management. The product is designed to be user friendly

and useful for those businesses to effectively manage their risks.

Qé S1vuds:9d 2555
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NATURE OF BUSINESS

Business Online Company Limited was founded on 26 April 1995 with registered capital of 10 million
Baht. On 1 December 2003, the company converted its status to a public company and was renamed as
Business Online Public Company Limited with registered capital of 75 million Baht. The company increased

its registered capital to 78.75 million Baht on 18 April 2007, and increased its fully paid-up capital on é June 2012.

Our business activities are to provide information that has been analysed and validated, as well as
related news, to improve customers’ decision making process. The information is compiled from many
sources such as the Department of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce. An agreement was
made between the Department of Business Development and BOL to allow access to basic information,
including company status, Board of Directors, and financial performance of more than 1,000,000 registered
companies in Thailand. sThe company also gathers other information such as related news from various
industries through leading newspapers and other respectable business news sources. In addition, the company
stfores and analyses debtors payment information from existing customers who are participating in this
programme. The information received is thoroughly checked, evaluated, analysed and stored in our online

system that can be accessed through the company’s website: https://www.BOL.co.th

The company’s joint venture with Dun & Bradstreet International (D&B) has increased BOL's capabilities;
not only have we gained knowledge in data management and analysis from a world’s leading company
but this has enabled the company to extend our service to international markets via D&B’s network. From
this, we had launched a service that offers information on overseas companies for our local customers as
a decision tool which is beneficial in strengthening the country’s credit risk management and promoting
fransparency of business transactions. On 22 March 2006, BOL established a wholly owned subsidiary, D&B
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. (Company Registration Number: 0105549038501) with a registered capital of 1 million
Baht.

With information of more than 1,000,000 registered companies in Thailand and more than 200 million
registered companies in 214 countries around the globe and expertise in developing Database Management
Systems, Risk Management, in conjunction with information technology know-how that make the company
to become one of the leading companies in providing fully-integrated information services ranging from
basic information such as basic information and company operation results which include : news services,
information analysis and validation. These can be used as effective tools that are effective and accurate

while reducing risks associated with investments and building more confidence and business opportunities.

The company has been selected as the data processing center for credit information submitted by

financial institutions which are members of National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd. (NCB).

In 2004, BOL introduced a comprehensive Financial Analysis System fo the market. This system enhanced

the efficiency in analyzing financial information and assisted managers to confidently devise strategies.

BOL began providing in-depth data analysis to improve its capability in business risks and opportunity
analysis. Since 2005, the company has developed a new generation of product that specifically caters for
financial institutions which is called Decision Support System ("DSS”). DSS enables the integration of BOL's
and customers’ databases to help customers better organize their databases to capture market opportunities

and improve their risk management.
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At the end of 2007, BOL launched a new product called “Corpus”. Corpus is a new concept of information
service that integrafes information on companies’ profile, shareholder information, director details and
financial statements. Users could easily access the information of over 1,000,000 companies to analyse
threats and opportunities of any given company. Corpus was designed to answer the needs for information

which may vary from industry to industry or from one job function to another.

In 2009, the company has finished developing a risk forecasting tools that indicates an organization’s
probability in running into financial crisis and displays the result in a form of a score or Financial Stress Score
(FS Score) that achieves intermational standards. The tool is a result of collaboration between BOL and the
analyst team of D&B in the United States. It is expected that the tool will help customers to understand
the financial standings of their business partners while diversifying their risks though better risk management

strategies.

On 10 March 2011, BOL established a wholly owned subsidiary, iBOL Co., Ltd. (Company Registration
Number: 0105554035077) with a registered capital of 5 million Baht, and increased its paid-up capital to
25 million Bath on 20 March 2012.

Type of Services
BOL'’s services are divided into 3 main groups as follow :
1. Information Services

1.1 Basic Information

1.2 Decision Support Information

1.3 Analytic Information

2. Risk Management Services
2.1 Risk Management Solution

2.2 Risk Management Consultancy

3. Other Services
3.1 Special Project
3.2 Debtline

1. Information Services
Information service is BOL's main business, contributing over 70% of the fotal revenue and continues to
grow. In today’s business world, organizations are required to adapt themselves to rapid changes. Information for
decision making has played a significant role for management to accommodate and respond to competitive
situation. BOL is continuously developing its services to serve different target groups which have different
level of needs. The company emphasizes on adding value and bringing new perspective in managing risks
and opportunities. Our information service is delivered in the following categories :
1.1 Basic Information Service
This covers both domestic and international company information through online and offline channels.
The service is provided to private businesses and organizations, as well as governmental agencies

by gathering business information from various sources thus giving different levels of users comprehensive
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1.2

1.3

and in-depth information which is offered in many forms such as :
* Web-based application that has the following functions :
= Access to updated, multi-dimensional information gathered from various sources
= In-depth financial analysis that helps users to easily understand complex numbers
» Alert changes to target companies that may have effects on the users’ organizations
» Finding new customers according to user-defined criteria which helps with devising
organisational strategies
= Advanced search that enhances marketing effectiveness
* Reports
* Customised database-users can choose datfa items from our database in compiling reports
tailored to their specifications
Decision Support Information
This is provided as a Decision Support System that suits large organizations such as financial
institutions where overview of business information is essential to their operations. This also includes
applications, systems and information that are regularly updated.
Analytic Information
This is provided in forms of scores and ratings by compiling business and financial information of
over 260,000 companies in our database. This is then analysed by using statistical methods before
a score is given. Users then use this score to predict the probability of a company facing a financial
crisis which leads to bankruptcy, receivership, foreclosure or rehabilitation so that they understand
their customer’s business, diversify their risks, and effectively employing suitable risk management

strategies for their portfolio.

2. Risk Management Services

2.1

2.2

Risk Management Solutions

Through cooperation with a leading international company, we are able to provide risk management
tools to financial institutions such as financial analysis system, business rule engine.

Risk Management Consultancy

We also serve as risk management consultants by bringing our experience and expertise on data

analysis to serve our customers through consulting sessions and seminars.

3. Other Services

3.1

3.2

Special Project

Special project is one that the company provides by using our expertise in data management
and auditing, and [T infrastructure development that satisfy our customers’ unique requirements.
Debtline

The company provides debt collection service to enhance financial and liquidity management
to customers. This helps them fo reduce bad debts while maintaining good relationships with their
trading partners.
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Milestones of BOL

1995
1996

1998
2004
2006

2008
2008

2008

2009

2011
2011

2012

2012

2012

Established Business Online Co., Ltd. (BOL).

Signed a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the Department of Business Development
(DBD), Ministry of Commerce to provide online information of registered companies in Thailand.
Entered into a joint venture with Dun and Bradstreet (D&B). a world leading information provider.
Listed on The “Market for Alternative Investment (mai)” The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Established D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd. as a fully-owned subsidiary with the registered capital of 1 million Baht.
“Bai Pho Business Award” by Sasin 2008 Outstanding in “Value Creation” and “Customer Focus”.
200 Best Under A Billion” Award from Forbes Asia Magazine (September 2008 issue) conducted
a survey on listed companies in Asia Pacific region consisting of 24,155 companies. The purpose
of this award was o give “200 Best Under A Billion” Award fo listed companies which had revenues
of less than a billion US Dollars and had outstanding performances.

Inverted 20% of 150 million Baht registered capital with other partner to establish ABIKS Development
Co., Ltd.

BOL was certified on the Information Security Management System (ISMS) in accordance with standards
of ISO/IEC 27001:2005 from Bureau Veritas Certification (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (BVQI). Which is the best
standard in the Information Security Management System. This is one of the achievements which
demonstrate our commitment to professionally serve our customers with highest quality and efficiency.
D&B Worldwide Network Awards 2011 “Excellence in Information Quality”

Established iBOL Co., Ltd. as a fully-owned subsidiary with the registered capital of 5 million Baht.
(Increased the registered capital to 25 million Baht)

BOL and DBD has agreed upon the extension of the current agreement for another 20 years from
2016 to 2035.

Approved as registered traders. Under consultant, for information technology and communications
group. Airports of Thailand Public Company Limited (AOT) was approved on 16 August 2012.

Listed as 1 in 9 companies that achieves ‘mai stars” status, with net profit, net cash flow from operations,
continuous dividend payment  for five years (2007 - 2011), and corporate governance rating of “Good”

or 3 Stars and above
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RISK FACTORS

Risk factors are considered as factors which
may have adverse effects on the company’s operation
and performance. The factors not being mentioned
are considered fo be insignificant or beyond the

company’s anficipation.

1. Risks related fo the security of BOL's database

Since the company is in the business of providing
information, database are therefore the most crucial
assets of the company. Any loss of information or
illegal break-in (hacking) to steal or destroy the
database or any network problem, will have detrimental
impact on the company’s operations and services.
Risk Mitigation

The company has therefore implemented a set of policies and procedures to protect database and
to ensure network security. The company also performs backing up all files at the production site and
back-up facility on a daily basis. Both facilities are equipped with high levels of security. The company
appoints a list of personnel who have access the database according to their authorization. The company
also implements a number of physical security systems such as access card to allow only authorized
personnel to access to the specific area, the installation of close-circuit television, and fingerprint scans
to record personnel who access to the data center.

Moreover BOL's network system, hardware and software are maintained and updated to ensure that
they function property at all times. Data Center staff are dedicated to monitor the status of the system.
The company implemented firewall, an international standard network security system to prevent system
intrusion and the company has never experienced a security breach with its database.

In the year 2008, BOL implemented a system procedure to comply with 1ISO27001 : 2005 (Information
Security Management System). We have been certified with this international standard by Bureau Veritas
Certification (Thailand) Co., Ltd. in June 2009.

2. Risks on for Information Sources

Nowadays, the major sources of information supported the company’s services are supplied by
two governmental organizations which are: Department of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce;
based on information received from these organizations, BOL develops, analyses, and adds value so as
to provide relevant information services to customers. However, there are some risks associated to these
information sources, such as quality of information and the continuity of the support from the agencies.
Risk Mitigation

The company is working closely with the organization by checking and correcting data errors which
improve the quality of their information. BOL also searches for other respectable sources i.e. by gathering
data from interviews, researches and questionnaires, etc. BOL also develops these information by turning

them into a more in-depth analysis.
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3. Competition risk

In the current information age, an information service available on the internet is expanding in an

b,

unprecedented speed. There is always a possibility for new entfrants to the market.
Risk Mitigation

The company always emphasizes on value perceived by customers. With 17 years experience in a
business that provides business information, the company continuously researched and develops its database.
In the meantime, the company also concentrates on human resource development by having staff exposed
to new technology trend from joining local and international events. The incremental knowledge is used to
enhance the company’s strategies to create value to the service that best fit o user’s requirements.
Moreover, we have received the support from our business alliances who mostly are global leaders in the business

information industry through constant collaborations in order to improve our company’s business in the future.

4. Risks from major shareholders pursuing their own interests

BOL's major shareholders are Mr. Min Intanate and Keppel Communications Pte. Ltd., with a combined
52.95 percent of BOL total paid-up capital (including ARG, in which Mr. Min Intanate and Keppel Group
are major shareholders). The major shareholders are able to control resolutions of shareholders” meetings
regarding issues which require at least 50% of the total number of shareholders who attend the meeting and
have the right fo vote.
Risk Mitigation

The company has appointed independent directors which make up 33.33% of the Board of Directors
to promote transparency. Furthermore, the company has also allowed common stock holders to suggest the

names of directors and set the agenda in the annual general meeting.

5. The company depends on its management and senior employees. Unable to retain then could
adversely affect the company’s performance.

Most of management and senior employees have been with the company for long period. Their skill
and experiences are very specialized and critical to the company success. If the company is unable to
retain them and has no proper succession plan, it may create negative impact on businesses and financial
performance.

Risk Mitigation

The company regards employee retention as its priority. One of the significant factors for company’s
sustainable success is maintaining skilled and experienced personnel in management, sales, marketing and
production. Furthermore, BOL consistently trains its human resources to assure that they could provide effective
product development and selling. ESOP for senior employees’ scheme is used to encourage them to work

with the company in long-term and binding their interest to company’s performance.
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SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

Top Ten major shareholders as of 28 December 2012 include :

~
% of shareholding

No. Shareholder No. of shares
1 Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd. 167,508,000 21.27
2 Keppel Communications Pte., Ltd. 164,224,000 20.85
3 Mr. Wissanu Sakulphichetrat 78,749,900 10.00
4 Dun & Bradstreet International, Ltd. 71,250,000 9.05
5 Mr. Min Intanate 54,730,000 6.95
6 Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited 32,845,000 417
7 Pan Pacific Consultant Co., Ltd. 30,484,000 3.87
8 Mrs. Parinya Khancharoensuk 22,500,000 2.86
9 Mr. Sorasak Kurattanaphisan 18,000,000 2.29
10 Citibbank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd-Ubs Ag 12,929,400 1.64
London Branch-Nrbs Ipb Client Seg
11 Other Shareholders 134,279,700 17.05
Total 787,500,000 100.00

Dividend Policy

The company’s dividend policy is to pay dividend not less than 50 percent of consolidated net

profit after tax. However, the payout ratio may be lower if the company plans to expand its operations.

The dividend payment shall not exceed the retained earnings in the company’s financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Board of Directors

‘ Audit Committee ‘

Executive

Committee

J

Internal AudifJ

General

Manager

l Company \ ’ Data Quality \
\ Secretary ’ \ Management ’

Sales, Marketi \ \ ] i \
ales, Marketing D&B Business Operations \ Accounting

Divzrgglrizsnf J J & System J & Finance J

Board of Directors

1. Mr. Noravat Suwarn Chairman of the Board

2. Mr. Min Intanate Director

3. Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont Director

4. Ms. Chamaiporn  Apikulvanich Director

5. Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon Director

6. Mr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng Director

7. Mr. Anant Tangtatswas Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
8. Ms. Manida Zinmerman Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee
9. Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee

Company Secretary
Mr. Chaiyaporn  Kiatnuntavimon

The Authorised Directors
The authorised directors are of Mr. Noravat Suwarn, Mr. Min Intanate, Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich, and

Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon. Any two signatures of the four directors with the company’s seal shall bind the company.
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DIRECTOR MEETING ATTENDANCE FOR THE YEAR 2012

Director Board Meeting Attendant Audit Committee Meeting Attendan?
/Total Meeting /Total Meeting
Mr. Noravat Suwarn 6/6 -
Mr. Min Intanate 6/6 -
Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont 6/6 -
Ms. Chamaiporn  Apikulvanich 6/6 -
Mr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng 6/6 -
Mr. Teoh Khiom Boon 5/6 -
Mr. Anant Tangtatswas 6/6 4/4
Ms. Manida Zinmerman 3/6 2/4
Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya 4/6 3/4

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Directors shall honestly and prudently perform their duties in accordance with the laws of Thailand,

the objectives of the company as contained in the Articles of Association of the company, and minutes of

shareholders” meetings, all with the aim to protect the interests of the company. A summary of the duties are

as follows :

1.

The Board of Directors shall hold an annual general shareholders” meeting within four months after the last day
of each fiscal year.

The Board of Directors shall hold a meeting at least once every three months.

3. The Board of Directors shall prepare the balance sheet and income statement as at the last date of the

fiscal year for reporting to the shareholders in Annual General Meeting for their consideration and approval.
As deem appropriate, the Board of Directors may designate any director(s) or any person as their proxy to
act on behalf of the Board on specific issues for a period of time under the Board supervision. The Board
may change, amend or cancel the proxy whenever it deems appropriate.

The Board of Directors may assign their proxy to Executive Committee to perform certain activities.

However, the proxy shall limit the authorized person(s) not to make decision on any fransaction that may
have any conflict of inferest with the company or its subsidiaries, except for the transactions which are
already or under guidelines approved by the Board.
The Board of Directors shall determine the company’s target, policy, business plan and budget and supervise
the management of the Executive Committee to ensure that they are in line with the company’s policy,
with an exception for the following matters which require the approval of shareholders: a capital increase,
capital reduction, debenture issuance, disposal or transfer of the business or a significant part of there to
other parties, the purchase or transfer of other businesses, and an amendment of Memorandum of
Association or Articles of Association.

The Board of Directors shall ensure the company complies with regulations of the SEC and SET, i.e.
connected fransactions, the disposal or acquisition of assets, etc.

The Board of Directors shall determine the management structure, appoint of the Executive Committee,

Chief Executive Officer, and members of other Committees.
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7. The Board of Directors shall monitor the company’s performance in comparison fo the business plan and budget.

8. Director(s) shall not engage in any business which is similar or in competition with the business of the company

or become a partner in an ordinary partnership or become a director of a private company or any other
company operating a business which is similar or in competition with the business of the company, unless he
or she notifies the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting prior to the resolution of his or her
appointment.

A director shall notify the company without delay if there is a conflict of interest, whether directly or
indirectly interest in any contract which is made by the company; or holds shares or debentures of
the company or an doffiliated company. and shall indicate any increase or decrease in the number of

the director’s total number of shares.

Executive Committee

1. Mr. Min Intanate Executive Chairman
2. Ms. Chamaipomn  Apikulvanich General Manager
3. Mr. Chaiyaporn  Kiatnuntavimon Deputy General Manager-Sales, Marketing & Business

Development
4. Ms. Surat Rithirong Deputy General Manager-Operation & System

5. Ms. Kanyapan Buranarom Deputy General Manager-Financial & Accounting

Duties and Responsibilities of the Executive Committee

The duties of the Executive Committee are to manage the company according to strategies and

policies set by the Board including the determination of policy, business plan, budget, management

structure and overall management of the company. The Executive Committee is to report the plan to

the Board for its consideration and/or approval and also monitor the company’s performance in accordance

with the policies. The Executive Committee’s duties are summarized as following :

1.

Prepare and propose annual budget to the Board of Directors. In urgent case, the Executive Committee
shall consider and approve any changes of annual budget and shall report to the Board in the next

Board meeting.

2. Approve expenditures not exceeding 20 million Baht.

3. Approve major investment as contained in the annual budget that are assigned or approved by

106

the Board of Directors.

Provide advice to management in respect of financial, marketing, human resource management, and others.
The Executive Committee has the authority to make decisions relating to any normal business

fransaction of the company, which do not include approval of transactions which may cause

a conflict of interest with the company or its subsidiary (if any) according to the SET’s regulations.

The Executive Committee is required to obtain approval from the Board or Shareholders for connected

fransactions in accordance with the company’s Articles of Association or relevant laws, except for

normal business transactions already covered by existing guidelines approved by the Board.
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THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of Business Online Public Company Limited approved the appointment of an Audit

Committee on 24 October 2003. The Audit Committee consists of Directors with qualifications specified by the Securities

and Exchange Act. The Audit Committee currently consists of three (3) Independent Directors, at least one of

whom shall possess qualifications in accounting and finance.

g N
Name Position
1. Mr. Anant  Tangfafswas Chairman of Audit Committee / Independent Director with qualifications
in finance and accounting
2. Ms. Manida Zinmerman Audit Committee / Independent Director
3. Ms. Suteera  Sripaibulya Audit Committee / Independent Director

Audit Committee’s secretary

Mr. Songpol Sangkajonkiat  Senior Internal Audit Manager

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

1.
2,

To review the company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate;

To review the company’s internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are suitable and

efficient, o determine an internal audit unit’s independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer

and dismissal of the chief of internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit;

To review the company’s compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the Exchange’s regulations, and

the laws relating to the company’s business;

To consider, select and nominate an independent person to be the company’s auditor, and fo propose such

person’s remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management meeting with an auditor at least once a year;

To review the connected fransactions, or the fransactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure

that they are in compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, and are reasonable and for the highest

benefit of the company;

To prepare, and to disclose in the company’s annual report, an Audit Committee’s report which must be

signed by the Audit Committee’s Chairman and contian of at least the following information :

e An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the company’s financial report,

e An opinion on the adequacy of the company’s internal confrol system,

e An opinion on the compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the Exchange’s regulations, or the
laws relating to the company’s business,

* An opinion on the suitability of an auditor,

e An opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests,

e The number of the Audit Committee meetings, and the aftendance of such meetings by each committee member,

e An opinion or overview comment received by the Audit Committee from its performance of duties in accordance
with the charter, and

o Other transactions which, according to the Audit Committee’s opinion, should be known to the shareholders
and general investors, subject to the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the company’s
Board of Directors.

To perform any other acts as assigned by the company’s Board of Directors, with the approval of the Audit Committee.

In the case that the Audit Committee’s duties are changed, the company shall report on a resolution to

change their duties, and shall prepare a list and scope of work of the Audit Committee according to such

change in the form as prescribed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET). Such list and scope of work must

be submitted to the SET within 3 (three) business days from the date on which the change is made in accordance

with the procedures under the SET’s regulations relating to reporting via an electronic media.
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The definition of “Independent Director”

The company has defined the “Independent Director” in accordance with the requirement set by the

SEC and SET, as follows :

An Independent Director is a director who independently provides opinions to the Board of Directors and :

1. Holds shares of no more than 1 percent of the company paid-up capital.

2. Does not take part in the management of the company, or its subsidiaries.

3. Is independent from the management and shareholders who have the authority in the company.

4. Is not a related person or close relative of any management member or majority shareholder of
the company or the authority person.

5. Does not have any significant business relation with the company which may refrain from providing or
expressing his/her independent opinions.

6. Is not an employee, staff member or advisor who receives a regular salary from the company during the

1 year period before becoming an independent director.

Selection of Directors

The company has not set up a nominating committee to nominate appropriate persons to be elected
as director(s) of the company. The Board of Directors shall select a director according to quadlifications as
stated in the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, Section 68. and propose to the meetings of

shareholders for approval.

Shareholder Voting Rights for the Selection of Directors
The Board of Directors shall be appointed by a shareholders in Annual General Meeting according to
the following procedures:
1) Each shareholder shall have one vote per one share.
2) Each shareholder shall cast his/her vote for one or more candidates for Board membership but shall
not divide his/her voting rights amongst more than one candidates.
3) The persons receiving the highest number of votes in respective order shall be appointed as Directors.
In the event that a number of persons receive an equal number of votes for the last directorship,

resulting in the number of Directors being more than is required at such fime, the Chairman of the

meeting shall have the deciding vote.
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Remuneration of Directors

Director remuneration

Name Position Remuneration Remuneration\
Year 2012 Year 2011
Mr. Noravat Suwarn Chairman of the Board 4,102,000.00 3,917,052.00
Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont| Director 370,000.00 360,000.00
Mr. David  Justinus Emerym Director - 245,000.00
Mr. Teoh  Khiam Boon® Director 265,000.00 100,000.00
Mr. Wilson  Teo Yong Peng Director 130,000.00 115,000.00
Mr. Anant  Tangtatswas Independent Director & 1,012,000.00 1,002,000.00
Chairman of Audit Committee
Ms. Manida Zinmerman Independent Director & 595,000.00 585,000.00
Member of Audit Committee
Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Independent Director & 600,000.00 595,000.00
Member of Audit Committee
Total 7,074,000.00 6,919,052.00

Remark : The meeting allowance amount 5,000 Baht per attendance

(1) Mr. David Justinus Emery resigned from the director since 1 August 2011

(2) Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon take the position instead of Mr. David Justinus Emery on 9 August 2011

Monetary remuneration (Executive Committee)

The overall remuneration for the Executive Committee and the Director who involve in management

in the forms of salaries.

Year 2012

Year 2011

Total amount 12,364,875.00 Baht

Total 5 persons

Total 5 persons
Total amount 11,078,685.00 Baht

Other Remuneration

BOL's total contribution to the provident fund for 5 members of its management was 257,358.00 Baht

in 2012 and 239,203.00 Baht for 5 members in 2011,
In Year 2012 Directors, Executives and Employees exercised ESOP warrant as detail below:

e Directors 1 members totaled 300,000 Shares
o Executives 3 members totaled 712,500 Shares
e Employees 9 members totaled 1,392,800  Shares
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The detail of ESOP Warrants :

Business Online Public Company Limited allotted the ESOP warrants to directors, Executive and employees
of the company under the ESOP Warrant on 31 August 2007. In the year 2012, the company has exercised
ESOP warrant on 31 May 2012. Details of the allotment are as follows :

e Numbers of Warrants under ESOP warrants © 37,500,000 Units

e Number of Ordinary Shares in reserve for the ESOP warranfs : 37.500,000 shares

e Date of issuance and offering . 31 August 2007

e Exercise period : The last business days of November

and May and offering of warrants.

e Exercise ratfio : 1 warrant : 1 ordinary share
o Exercise price : Baht 0.682 per share
o Term . 5 years from the warrant issuing date

1. Results of the exercise of ESOP warrants in year 2012 are as follow :
1.1 Number of exercising warrant-holders
May 2012 13 persons
1.2 Number of exercised warrants (year 2012) 2,405,300 units

1.3 Number of ordinary shares issued for this exercise period (year 2012) 2,405,300 shares

1.4 Balance of the fotal ESOP warrants 0 units
2. Amount of money received from the shares issued through the exercise of warrants in year 2012
- Total amount 1,640,414.60 Baht
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY

The company sees the importance of good governance and has put appropriate monitoring process in
place while instiling the value of business ethics in dealing with our customers, partners, competitors,

members of the public and our staffs.

We believe that good corporate govemnance policy, which consists of competent management,
qualified and accountable directors, mechanism of checks and balances for fransparent and auditable
operations, respect for the rights of all shareholders, and equitable treatment for all stakeholders are the
key factors in maximizing the economic value of the company and increasing the sustainable long-term

return on investment to our shareholders.

The Board of Directors aims to manage the company by using the corporate governance policies in
order to operate the company with efficiency while achieving the company’s objectives. The corporate

governance policies can be divided into 5 categories as follow :

. Rights of Shareholders
Il. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders
ll. The Roles of Company Regarding Stakeholders
IV. Disclosure of Information and Transparency
V. Responsibilities of Board of Directors

. Rights of Shareholders
1. Shareholders are the owners of the company. They control the company through the appointment of
the Board of Directors to serve their interests in making significant decisions for the company. Therefore
the company should encourage shareholders to exercise their rights.
2. Fundamental rights of shareholders:
» Trade or transfer shares, receive share certificates, and have the rights to access, obtain relevant and
adequate information, operational results, and management policies in the timely manner and on
a regular basis.
o Have the rights to receive dividends.
 Participate and vote in the shareholder meetings to elect or remove members of the Board, appoint
the external auditors, and make decisions on any transactions that affect the company such as dividends
payment, making amendments to the memorandum of association, capital increases or decreases,
and the approval of extraordinary transactions, etc.
 Shareholders should be fully informed of the criteria and procedures goveming shareholders meetings
that include sufficient information regarding the issues to be decided in each agenda. This should
be provided in advance of the meeting. Shareholders should be able to query directors both in the
meeting and by sending their questions in beforehand. They should also be allowed to propose an
agenda and vote by proxy.
o The Board of Directors must recognize shareholders rights and avoid any actions that violate those rights.
3. Shareholders shall receive meeting invitation letter and information on venue, date, fime, all agenda
items with complete supplementary information 14 days prior o the meeting date. All information

regarding shareholders meeting shall be posted on the company’s website before the meeting.
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The company has to provide suitable place and time that most attendees can attend the meeting.
Furthermore, all shareholders should be treated equally according to revalant law and regulations.
Chairman of the Board shall attend the meeting to answer shareholders’ queries or appoint other directors
or managers to elaborate on the answers in greater detail.

Affer the meeting, shareholders have clear understanding and able fo access minute of meeting and

voting results.

In the year 2012, the company has managed to comply with principle of the Good Corporate Governance

under the rights of Shareholders policy as follows:
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o The company has distributed its operating profit by paying dividend to all shareholders at 0.05 and
0.04 Baht per share, as of April 5, 2012 and September 3, 2012,

e The company has sentf; an invitation for the annual general meeting with the agenda along with
the directors’ comments for consideration; letter of attorney (as required by law); the list of independent
directors; advice on authorizing a proxy so that shareholders can designate a proxy in attending
the annual general meeting while providing stamp duty for proxy which is free of charge: and map
of the company to shareholders 14 days prior to the meeting.

o The company has sent letter of meeting invitation to all company’s shareholders. The company’s
registrar delivered the document to all shareholders on March 14, 2012. In the same time, there was
an announcement on the company’s official website, https://www.BOL.co.th under the tab of Investor
Relation.

o The Chairman of the Board attend the shareholders” meeting on March 29, 2012 (referred to Minute
of Meeting of that day).

e The company disclosed the Minute of Meeting on the company’s official website, https://www.BOL.co.th,
within 14 days after the meeting date. So both the attended and absent shareholders acknowledge
the voting results of each agenda.

e In order to open new channel to allow minority shareholders to propose agenda(s) and nominate
director(s) to be appointed in the shareholders’ meeting, during December 1-31, 2012, the company
had opened an opportunity for any shareholders to propose agenda(s) and/or nominate director(s)
to be considered and/or appointed in the Annual General Meeting 2013 via the company website.

e The company has disclosed the directors’ remuneration for shareholders” approval on a yearly basis
along with the policies and criteria used in determining the directors’ remuneration.

e The company does not make any additions or alterations to the agenda and other important
information without notifying the shareholders during the annual general meeting for the year 2012

while giving the shareholders to share their opinions and voice their concems during the meeting.

. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders
. Shareholders have voting rights in accordance with the number of shares that they hold, and have

equal rights equality with regard to accessing company information.

Shareholders shall receive necessary information from the company that is sufficient, fair and timely,
and the company shall not display bias towards any one group of shareholders by providing them with
information that have not been made public.

In the shareholders” meetings, the shareholders shall be treated with faimess.
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The company encourages the use of proxy forms on which shareholders can specify their voting preferences.
The company provides an option for shareholders to appoint the Chairman of the Audit Committee,

who is an independent director, as their proxy.

5. For the sake of fransparency and historical record, the company encourages the use of voting cards.

6. The company has mechanisms to prevent insider trading in order to protect fraud and the leak of information.

The company conducts its business according fo regulations of Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)

and Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). We put significant considerations on transparency and faimess,

especially on conflict of inferest issues. In addition, the disclosure of information in fimely manner is always

emphasized.

For the company interests, the internal control on the use of information is clearly stated in the company

handbook. The penalty will be imposed on management and staff who disclose internal information to

public or use them for personal benefits.

Moreover, the shareholders structure and details of shares held by executives are fully disclosed in

annual report.

In the year 2012, the company fo complied with the principle of the Good Governance, under the “Equitable

Treatment of shareholders policy” as follows:

e The company notified Shareholders of their rights in the Shareholder’s Meeting, such as the right to
vote (one share, one vote), the right to assign a proxy to attend the meeting according to the
company's Articles of Association.

e The company arranged to provide 3 types of proxy form, similar to those set by the Department of
Business Development, Ministry of Commerce, for shareholders. In addition, the company explained in
detail how a shareholder can assign his/her rights as a shareholder to a proxy in writing, as an
attachment fo the letter of meeting invitation.

o The company arranged to have voting cards on every agenda to facilitate voting and transparency
of vote counting.

e The company set measures to prevent insider trading. For instance, the company secretary would
notify directors and executives of the “no trading” period (1 month prior to the announcement of

the company's quarterly result) o promote awareness and equitable treatments to all shareholders.

lll. The Roles of Company Regarding Stakeholders

1.

The Board of Directors must be aware of the rights of stakeholders as stipulated by law, and should
support cooperation between the company and stakeholders in the creation of prosperity, employment
and activities with a sustainable financial status. The Board of Directors shall be sure that the rights of

stakeholders are being protected and practiced.

. The Board of Directors must take info account the benefits received and given by stakeholders in

generating competitiveness and profits for the company.

The company recognizes the rights of all parties, and issue policies to reassure the shareholders, employees,
customers, business partners, creditors, competitors, including public and society they are suitably benefited
from the company’s operations and must encourage the collaboration of these parties to ensure a stable

future of the company this is fair for all the parties concerned.
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Shareholders : The company determines to be a good representative of shareholders in carrying out
the business in order to maximize shareholder safisfaction with regards fo sustainable long term growth
while disclosing transparent and reliable information.
Employees : All members of staff are valuable assets and a critical factor for success, so the company
must place emphasis on developing and promoting a good culture and working atmosphere,
teamwork, courtesy, and respect for individuality. The employment, promotion and transfer of all staff
members shall be conducted in a fair manner based on ethical standards whilst maximizing human
resource utilization. The company is responsible for implementing and maintaining a safe working
environment to protect the lives and property of all of our employees. The company must also strictly
adhere to employment law.
Customers : Customer’s satisfaction and consumer confidence are very important to the company.
The company aims to provide high quality goods and services at reasonable prices, and maintain
good relationships with our customers. The company has thus determined the following guidelines:
= Products and Services
The company shall provide high quality products and services, while continuously improving their
standards. Meanwhile, we aim to disclose all of the information that is related to the products
with infegrity.
= Confidentiality of Customers’ Information
Directors, management, and staff members at all levels shall not disclose any information on customers
without prior permission from those customers or authorized personnel of any company in the Group.
The only exception to this is information requested by law enforcement officers in accordance
with the law.
Business Partners and Creditors : The company’s dealings with any business partner shall be conducted
in a manner that upholds the reputation of the company and all relevant laws. All company personnel
must be aware of the common inferests of the company’s business partners and treat them equitably.
The selection of business partners shall be fair. The company shall also consider its business partners
to be the key factor in jointly creating a value chain for customers.
Competitors : The company has a policy of free and fair competition and will not try to monopolize
the industry. The company will not force its business partners to distribute only the company’s products.
The company shall not acquire information on its competitors by any illegal or unethical methods.
Responsibility to Society and the Environment : The company is aware that it is a Thai company and
has a responsibility fo Thailand and Thai society. The company is committed to making a contribution
to society by supporting activities of public interest and cooperating with the communities in which

those activities are located.

In the year 2012, the company has managed to comply with the principle of the Good Corporate

Governance, under the Role of the Company Regarding Stakeholders policy as follows :
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1.

The company sees that our staffs are our most valuable asset, and their health is an important factor
of satisfaction of their working environment. The company provided health check-up service on
a yearly basis, which, this year, ook place on September 14, 2012.

The company provides provident fund for staffs.

3. The company organized regular training and workshop to enhance employees’ knowledge in various fields.

Partners in the opponent, then the principle of equality. By providing price comparisons. To achieve
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equality and not exclusive to anyone.

5. The company regularly participated in charitable and social activities. The most recent was the
sponsoring of the “"Card for You” campaign organized by the Better Thailand Foundation where disable
and underprivileged children were invited to enter a painting contest. This event is 10th year which
held on June 16, 2012. The winning paintings were used by the company to print its 2013 New Year's
greeting card.

IV. Disclosure of Information and Transparency

1.

The company encourages disclosure of information with correctness, completeness, transparency and
financial information/reports, operational results, and other related information in a timely manner, in order
for investors and all relevant parties to use these information when making decisions to frade via distribution
channels and media of SET (The Stock Exchange of Thailand) and the Security and Exchange Commission which
may include websites of companies that provide security trading services while providing information in
Thai and English.

The company provides a summary of the Corporate Governance Policy approved by its Board of Directors
through various channels such as the annual report and website.

The company provides a statement of the Board's responsibilities concerning the company’s financial
report. This statement is presented alongside the auditor’s report in the company’s the Financial Statements
(56-1) and annual report (56-2).

The company discloses the roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and Internal Audit Committee,
the fotal number of meetings and the number of meetings each member attends, as well as the results
of tasks performed during the year in the annual report and in shareholder meeting notices, according
to SET and the SEC regulations.

The company sets up a unit to directly take charge of providing information and communicating with
shareholders, investors and financial analyst.

In the year 2012, the company has managed to comply with the principle of the Good Corporate Governance

under the disclosure of information and transparency policy as follows:

1. The company disclosed its financial statements, letter of meeting invitation to shareholders meetings,
other company’s information, which submitted to SET (Stock Exchange of Thailand) under the tab
“Investor relations” in company’s website. It was also a communication channel between investors
and Investor Relations and provision of company news.

2. The company submitted the financial statements to the Securities and Exchange Commission/
The Stock Exchange of Thailand, within the specified period and there is no conditional advice from
the auditor.

3. The company disclosed the aftendance to the Board meetings of each director in its annual report.

4. The company has never been requested to resubmit the financial statements from the Stock Exchange

of Thailand and the Securities and Exchange Commission.

V. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1.

Structure of the Board
1.1 The company’s Board of Directors comprises of 9 directors who specialize in various aspects of
business. The Board of Directors’ structure is as follows :
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o Two Executive Directors who represent 22.22% of the Board.

e Seven non-Executive Directors who represent 77.78% or more than three-fourth of the entire
Board. This composition represents a good balance in monitoring management’s decisions.
There are 3 independent directors which represent 33.33% of the Board (or one-third) who
meet the qualifications under the Stock Exchange of Thailand and Securities and Exchange
Commission” regulations.

Moreover, the company had a policy to appoint different persons in the positions of the

Chairman of the Board and the Executive Chairman.

1.2 The appointment of directors must be made in accordance with the stipulated schedule, and
the nomination of directors for election shall be made with transparency and clarity. Background
information on the candidates must be sufficiently detailed to assist in the selection process.

1.3 The background of all the directors must be disclosed in detail to the public, and shall be disclosed
for any changes in the composition of the Board.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

Refer to duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors (Page 105)

Duration of Office
In each annual general shareholders’” meeting, one-third of the directors shall vacate their positions.

In the first and second years following the registration of the company, the directors shall conduct

a random draw to decide which members are to vacate their positions, unless they have determined

any other method among themselves. In subsequent years, the directors who have been in their positions

longest should vacate their posts. Directors whose term in office has thus ended may be re-selected

Meeting of the Board of Directors
The annual general meeting of shareholders will be organized and take place within 4 months after

the end of company’s fiscal or accounting year. There are also Board meetings every 3 months whose

yearly schedule is announced in advance and special meetings can be organised as necessary. To
schedule a meeting of the Board of the Directors, Chairman of the Board of the Directors and Executive

Chairman will consider and approve agenda. The company secretary of the Board will then deliver letter

of meeting invitation, agenda and related documents to the directors at least 7 days in advance, to

allow directors time to study the information before meeting.

The Chairman of the Board of the Directors will chair the meeting with appropriate time allocation on
each agenda for directors to discuss and express their opinion freely, especially on critical issues to
achieve a fairly balanced benefit for shareholders and stakeholders. The Chairman will ensure that the
management presents relevant information fo support the discussions. The company secretary will take note
and prepare Minute of Meeting within 14 days. He or she will keep record of the minute of meeting on file
together with other reference documents as well as supporting the Board of the Directors to perform
their duties in compliance with laws, regulations and resolutions of Shareholders” Meetings. The company
secretary will also coordinate with other parties concemed.

Remuneration of Directors
Remuneration of directors: the Board of Director determines the remuneration of directors in a clear

and transparent manner that are sufficient to attract, and retain directors with desirable qualification

directors. Additional remuneration shall be granted to directors appointed to the Audit Committee as
appropriate. Consideration for granting all such remuneration shall be based on relevant experience,

skill and expertise of respective directors.
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Remuneration of executive: Remuneration of executives will be according to the company’s operating

results as well as achievements of each individual executive.

. Sub-Committee

The company arranged to set up a subcomittee, which is the Audit Committee to assist the Board

in monitoring the work of each director.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is a part of the Board of Directors. Besides, the Audit Committee who has
been appointed by Board of Director and shareholders consists of 3 person, one of whom must possess
qualifications in accounting and finance. Their qualifications comply with the regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand with regards to independence. There must be a chief of Intemal Audit Department
who will also act as a secretary to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has the following duties
and authorities.

Refer to duties and responsibilities of Audit Committee (Page 107)

Qualifications of Audit Committee members

1. Any Audit Committee member and his or her related person shall hold not over 1 percent of the
paid-up capital of the company, companies within the group, partner companies and related companies.

2. Audit Committee shall be directly and indirectly independent from the company’s financial operations
and management. This extends to companies within the same group and its subsidiaries. The committee
shall not hold such interests for the period of 1 year prior fo their appointment with the exception that
the Board of Directors has decided that such interests do not affect the committee’s independent views.

3. Audit Committee members shall not be appointed to act as representatives to take care of interests of
major shareholders or others related to the major shareholders.

4. Audit Committee members shall not be involved in the company administration, and shall not be
employees, staff or consultants who receive a regular monthly salary from the company, companies
in a group, partner companies, related companies or the company’s major shareholders.

5. Audit Committee members shall not be involved with, or the close relatives of, the company’s executives
or major shareholders.

6. Audit Committee members must be able to provide comments or assessment of the work delegated
by the company’s Board of Directors, without being under control of the executives or major

shareholders of the company, including their relatives.

Duration of Office

Members of the Audit Committee shall remain in office for two years, including additional
appointments and withdrawals from the Audit Committee. Members of the Audit Committee whose
term in office has expired may be re-appointed. Resignation from the Audit Committee, member(s) of
the audit committee shall submit histher) letter of resignation to the Chairman of the Board of Directors
at least 30 days in advance. The Board of Directors shall approve resignations and send copies of
resignation letters to the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Should a vacancy arise on the Audit Committee for reasons other than the expiry of the duration

of office, the Board of Directors shall appoint a person with all the necessary qualifications to replace
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the resigned person. The appointed person shall remain in office only for the remaining term of office of

the person whom they are replacing, and the Stock Exchange of Thailand shall be notified accordingly.

Audit Committee meetings

1. The Audit Committee shall hold meetings once every each quarter to deliberate the quarterly budget
and other issues in accordance with Audit framework. The Chairman of the Audit Committee may
call for meetings in special instances to deliberate issues that are necessary or urgent as deemed
appropriate.

2. In cadlling a meeting of the Audit Committee, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, or the secretary
of the Audit Committee through the order of the Chairman of the Audit Committee, shall send
a letter to the members of the Audit Committee no less than seven days prior to the date of the
meeting. An exception may be made in urgent circumstances, the meeting may be announced by
other means or scheduled for an earlier suitable period.

3. The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall report the minutes of the meeting to the Board of Directors
on the following day.

4. The secretary of the Audit Committee shall not have the right fo vote.

Selection of Directors
Refer to selection of Directors (Page 108)
Executive Committee
Refer to Executive Committee (Page 106)
Training and Knowledge Development of the Board of Directors
Every newly appointed director shall be duly informed of the regulations and information of the
company and its subsidiaries as needed before performing their duties. Each director would receive
proper training to continuously develop their knowledge in order to help them efficiently perform their

duties and effectively control the business operation of the company.

In the year 2012, the company has managed to comply with the principle of the Good Governance under

responsibility of Board of Directors as follows :
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o All of Board of Directors already joined in basic course for the directors “Director Accredited Program (DAP)”

o The directors have taken part in determining the company’s vision, mission, strategies, goals and business
plan, and also evaluating the performance of the management.

o The directors have responsibility in ensuring that their conduct complies with the law, mission, company’s

regulations including shareholders” resolution with integrity while protecting the company’s interests.
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Employee

Department Number of employees 2012 (persons) b

Management 4
Sales & Marketing 17
Customer Service 6
Product & Business Development 14
D&B Business 6
D&B Duntrade 3
Data & Information Operation 24
Business Analyst 11
Application and Data Management 6
Network and Security Management 7
News Online 7
Data Center 12
Internal Audit 4
Accounting 9
Human Resource 6
Administrative 6

Total 142

As of December 2011 and December 2012, the company numbered 129 and 142 respectively.
Compensation for Employees
~

Detail Year 2012 Year 2011
Salaries and Bonuses (Baht) 69,969,873.39 65,002,934.53
Provident Fund (Baht) 1,147,781.50 983,313.00

Human Resource Development Policy

The company provides training and developing programs for its staff on a regular basis. A newly
recruiting employee will be offered trainings to enable them to understand their respective duties. Seminars,
training and workshops are organized for staff continuously fo increase their knowledge and enhance job
skills. Our overseas partners also send their personnel to train BOL staff regarding their new services and

BOL occasionally send our staff for overseas visit.

Labour Disputes Over the Past Three Years

None.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The company’s Board of Directors and Executives have continuously emphasized the importance of
the internal control system in order to have an adequate internal control system suitable for the company’s
business operation to achieve the highest management efficiency as well as taking care of property,
reducing mistakes and waste that might occur to the company, managing finance and risk, managing
and keeping security of data and information technology system, and supervising the performance and
compliance with rules and regulations of authorities agencies fo ensure that company’s operations would
be able to achieve the objectives and create the highest additional value in the long-term. The evaluation
of internal control system could be summarized as follows :

1. Control Environment

e The company clearly sets business operation goals which were considered by the company’s Board
of Directors, the goals can be substantially measured for use as employees’ working guidelines.

e The company clearly and suitably created the organizational structure and chains of command and
assigned authority and responsibilities to them in writing, all employees had acknowledged their roles,
authority, duty, and responsibility and were aware of their responsibilities.

e The company emphasized the importance of honesty and morality in doing business by setting policies
and regulations in writing.

2. Risk Evaluation

The management identified risks from interal and external factors which might have impact on the
achievement of organizational objectives. The company suitably analysed and managed risks while ensuring
that its operations comply with the measures that were sef.
3. Control Activities

The company has effective, suitable, and adequate control activities as follows: setting policies, level
of authorization and regulations on working in writing: reviewing financial reports and non-financial performance
reports by the management and the Audit Committee so that both teams can monitor each other; imposing
scope of authority and the level of authorised and delegation financial in writing; preparing supporting
documents that aids the delegation of duties to relevant divisions and persons to ensure that the risk
management system, internal control system, and business supervision process of the company were
sufficiently and efficiently provided in accordance with the company’s objectives.
4. Information Technology and Communication

The company continuously develops its information technology system and data system and sufficiently
made various important data to be used in making decisions. Consideration on minutes of the committee
was made by summarizing committee’s opinion. Account entry was made in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles to fit the company’s business characteristics. Moreover, the company had
the information technology system to facilitate its works, financial and operation result reports, compliance
with the policy and regulatfions used in confrolling and carrying out the organization’s activities fo ensure
that the information technology and communication, both inside and outside the organization, enabled
the organization to achieve its objectives and goals.
5. Monitoring and Assessment

The company has its own performance monitoring system which is used by the company’s Board of
Directors to compare the operation results of each year and so far has found that they have met the targeted
goals, the internal audit unit reports directly to the Audit Committee to audit the performance to see
whether it complied with the predefined internal control system.

After the Board of Directors made consideration, it unanimously agreed that the company had adequate
and suitable internal audit internal control system.
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MONITORING OF INSIDER TRADING

The company’s Board of Directors has recognized the importance of preventing the company’s
internal information against use for personal benefits, and therefore made a policy to keep confidential
information that have not been made available to the public. Such confidential information shall only be

disclosed to the parties concerned.

The company has advised executives of their duties to report on the company’s stocks held by them
as well as their spouses and their minor children, and to report changes to the Securities and Exchange
Commission in section 59 and the penalty in section 275 according to the Act on Securities and Securities
Exchange B.E. 2535. Moreover, the company prohibits directors, executives including their spouses and
their minor children from purchasing, selling. transferring, or taking transfer of, the company’s stock using
internal information not yet disclosed to the public, and from trading of stocks particularly during 1 month
before disclosure of financial statements to the public. In the cases where directors, executives’ including
their spouses and minor children purchase, sell, transfer, or taking transfer of the company’s stocks do not
fall under the above categories, all such transactions shall be reported to the Securities Exchange Commission
and the Stock Exchange of Thailand within 3 working days of their occurrence. There are reports for the

company’s stocks held by directors and executives at the quarterly Board of Directors Meeting.

As for employees, the company includes this subject as a matter of ethics to be observed by employees.
Employees must not use their positions, duties and the company’s confidential information to seek benefits

for themselves and related parties.

If any of the above persons are found to use the company’s intemal information for their own benefits,
the company shall deem that such persons have committed a serious disciplinary offense and will be

subjected to penalization pursuant to the company’s Articles of Association.

d
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LIST OF DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING
REPONS IN THE COMPANY

]
s w
B i 2
Elg > | % o o
2lg|2|=2|a|e|5|e|ld3 | 2 23|
o @ 4 o
No. Name a | @2|a|Q|z|Z|=|8|a5 % |8|&|%
1 | Mr. Noravat Suwarn X/ /
2 | Mr. Min Intanate LI X x|/ AR/ 11
3 | Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont |/ / // /i /
4 | Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon /
5 | Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich /e /
6 | Mr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng / / 1.1 L/
7 | Mr. Anant Tangtatswas / /
8 | Ms. Manida Zinmerman /
9 | Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya /
10 | Ms. Surat Rithirong //
11 | Mr. Chaiyapomn  Kiatnuntavimon // / /
12 | Ms. Kanyapan ~ Buranarom // / /
Remark : x = Chairman
/ = Director
// = Executive Committee
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected transactions that occurred between BOL and related parties as at 31 December 2011 and 2012

were as follow :

(Unit : Million Baht)

Amount )
Name Relationship Transaction Necesssity and Justification
2012 | 2011
1 | Advanced Research | Common Revenue
Group Co., Ltd. shareholders and | 1. Rental Income 0.16 | 0.15 | o Service Income is considered as
directors reasonable and regular business practise.
(ARG is a major | Costs and expenses
shareholders with a 1. Development cost for Decision | 2.98 | 4.45 | e Cost of Software Development Services is
21.27 percent stake Support System (DSS) considered as reasonable business practise.
in BOL as of 31 Thus, the mentioned service will be very
December 2012) beneficial for the company because this
service is value added from the existing
product.
2. Accounting Software Licenses | 1.87 | 1.87 | o Oracle license fee is considered as
Fees (Oracle) reasonable and appropriate practice and
3. Back Office services fee | 1.80 | 1.56 it has benefited to the company’s operation.
(Payroll, Accounting, Finance, Some Back Office services such as legal
Legal and Administrative services, etc. is deemed that it is more
services) valuable and beneficial than hiring
professional employees directly. As a results,
the use of such services and consultancy
rendered by ARG is proper fransaction.
Moreover, the pricing policy is presented
fairly and properly and it is also in
ordinary course of business.
4. Cost of Special Project 6.52 |23.91 | o Cost of Special Projects is considered as
Services (including reasonable practise and it will be beneficial
development, database for the company.
design and R&D)
2 | ARP Public Company | Common Revenue
Limited shareholders and | 1. Customized income 1.50 | 1.49 | Service Income and advertising fee is
directors Costs and expenses considered as reasonable practise. Pricing
Advertising expenses including | 3.00 | 3.80 | determined as the market price under the
newspapers, magazines, evenfs standard term and condition.
and exhibitions, gifts
3 | SVOA Public Common Revenue
Company Limited shareholders and | 1. DSS services 1.67 | 1.80 | Service Income (including Hardware &
directors Costs and expenses Software) is considered as the regular
1. Purchase of Computer 2.85 | 4.74 | business practise. Pricing determined as
hardware the market price under the standard term
2. Software maintenance 0.16 | 0.74 | and condition.
4 | National Credit Common Revenue
Bureau Co., Ltd. shareholders and | 1. Income from Royalty, Data center | 14.44 | 12.22 | Service Income is considered as regular
directors (BOL holds Income, rental and others. business fransaction. In fact, Pricing determined
a 12.25% share) 2. Income from customized project, | 2.24 | 0.48 | as the market price under the standard term
special projects and condition.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REPORT

The Audit Committee of Business Online Public Company Limited is composed of three (3) independent
directors. Each member of the Committee meets the qualification as defined by The Stock Exchange of

Thailand regulations. The members of the Committee are as follows:

1. Mr. Anant Tangtatswas Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
2. Ms. Manida Zinmerman Independent Director and Audit Committee
3. Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Independent Director and Audit Committee

Duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as follows :

o To review the financial report to be accurate, complete, and reliable.

e To oversee adequacy and efficiency of internal control system and internal audit system.
e To consider, select, and propose for appointment of the company’s auditor.

» To oversee the company’s compliance with related laws and regulation.

e Other duties assigned by the company’s Board of Directors.

During 2012, the Audit Committee conferred quarterly with the company’s auditor, intemal auditors,
management and the Accounting Department to review the financial reports, discuss and mutually give
recommendations so that the financial reports reflected generally accepted accounting principles.
The company’s financial statement was adequately disclosed and that no transactions, in contrary to the
related requirements and regulations, were found. Each quarter the Audit Committee submitted a report
on audit results to the Board of Directors. The major issues could be summarized as follows :

1. Reviewing the quarterly financial statement and annual financial statement proposed to the Board of
Direcftors.

2. Considering and proposing appointment of the company’s auditor and auditor’s remuneration by considering
auditor’s qualification, expertise in auditing and justification of the audit work quantity.

3. Considering objectives and scopes of work and approving audit plan for the year 2013 of the Internal
Audit section and giving recommendations and remarks.

4. Acknowledging audit results and recommendations for the Year 2012 by company’s auditor and the
Internal Audit section, following up the Management’s corresponding response and proposing fo the
Board of Directors.

5. Overseeing the company’s major risk management, good intermnal control system, compliance with the
securities law, rules and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand or other relevant legal issues.

6. Considering connected fransactions, or transactions that may lead to conflicts of inferests fo ensure fairness

and no transfer of benefits.

For the year 2013, the Audit Committee has proposed to the Board of Directors to appoint Ms. Siriwan
Suratepin C.P.A. Registration No. 4604 and/or Mr. Wichart Lokatekrawee C.P.A. Registration No. 4451 and/or
Ms. Kamontip Lertwitworatep C.P.A. Registration No. 4377 from Emst & Young Office Limited as the company’s
auditor for the year 2013.

(Do Yo

Mr. Anant Tangtfatswas
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ DUTIES ON FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE 2012

The Board of Directors of Business Online Public Company Limited understands the responsibility of
ensuring integrity, sufficient, relevant and transparent disclosure of the company’s fiscal year 2012 financial
statements. Such disclosure abides by the generally accepted accounting principles, ensuring the integrity
of the company’s operations appropriate accounting policies have been put in place and adhered to
on a consistent basis while due consideration has been placed on the process of preparing the company
and the company’s consolidated fiscal year 2012 financial statements including other information that

has been included in this year's annual report.

To enhance stakeholder trust, the Board appointed the Audit Committee comprising of Independent
Directors with qualifications as stipulated by the guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Ensuring
that the company provides sufficient, transparent, correct and appropriate financial disclosure along with
information regarding related party tfransactions is a key function of the committee. Ensuring appropriate,
sufficient and effective risk management guidelines, appropriate internal control procedures along with
robust internal audit processes are also the functions of the committee. Legal compliance is at the forefront
of the Board’s concerns therefore the committee is also charged with ensuring that the company’s
operations adheres to all relevant external and internal legal, guidelines and policies.

The Board of Directors believes that the company and the company’s consolidated fiscal year 2012
financial statements ending 31 December 2012, which has been reviewed by the Audit Committee, management
and the company’s financial auditor to be correct, complete, appropriate, in compliance with generally
accepted accounting practices and employs appropriate accounting policies on a consistent basis. The
financial disclosure is deemed to be transparent, provides an appropriate level of disclosure and is in

compliance with all the relevant legal, guidelines and policies.

V- dstrdrn ﬂ"ﬁ‘“"/

Mr. Noravat Suwarn Mr. Jack Min Intanate
Chairman of the Board Executive Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Business Online Public Company Limited

I have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Business Online Public Company Limited
and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and
the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders” equity and cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,
and have also audited the separate financial statements of Business Online Public Company Limited for the same
period.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my
audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemnal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intemal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of Business Online Public Company
Limited as af 31 December 2012, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance

S SW}},

Siriwan Suratepin
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4604

with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Emst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 20 February 2013
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2012

(Unit : Baht)
~
Consolidated financial statements| Separate financial statements
[
g 2012 2011 2012 2011

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 48,423,827 59,347,148 46,282,007 58,219,650
Trade accounts receivable 8 89,490,346 72,886,668 89.490,346 72,886,668
Accrued income 139,840,661 131,279,094 139.840.,661 131,279,094
Other current assets 15,612,388 23,595,884 15,235,653 23,416,390
Total current assets 293,367,222 287,108,794 290,848,667 285,801,802
Non-current assets
Restricted bank deposits 9 17,000,100 17,000,100 17,000,100 17,000,100
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - - 13,099,930 5,599,930
Investment in associated company 77 30,605,894 30,404,981 30,000,000 30,000,000
Other long-ferm investment 12 27,864,111 27,864,111 27,864,111 27,864,111
Building improvement and

equipment 13 27,152,800 12,179,071 23,407,953 10,946,738
Intangible assets 14 28,194,666 13,869,482 18,083,403 11,023,981
Other non-current assets 1,685,322 1,334,576 1,632,722 1,334,576
Total non-current assets 132,502,893 102,652,321 131,088,219 103,769,436
Total assets 425,870,115 389,761,115 421,936,886 389,571,238

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2012

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
® statements statements
g 2012 2011 2012 2011
liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
short-term loans from financial institutions 75 | 36,369,000 - | 36,369,000 -
Trade and other payables 16 | 22,739,317 49,207,800 | 22,675855 | 49,022,087
Income tax payable 11,595,764 | 14,857,055 | 11595764 | 14,857,055
Other current liabilities
Uneamed revenue 41,813,322 38.617.464 41,813,322 38,617,464
Information utilization fee payable 11,747,589 11,564,194 11,747 589 11,564,194
Current portion of liabilities under financial 1,384,609
lease agreements 17 2,527,501 - 18,740,638 -
Others 17,971,329 15,919,400 17,492,402 15,792,440
Total current liabilities 144,763,822 | 130,165,913 | 143,078,541 | 129,853,240
Non-current liability
Reserve for long-term employee benefits 18 7,710,993 6,765,969 7.710,993 6,765,969
Liabilities under financial lease agreements
- net of current portion 17 4,272,821 - 2,623,681 -
Total non-current liability 11,983,814 6,765,969 10,334,674 6,765,969
Total liabilities 166,747 636 136,931,882 163,413,215 136,619,209
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 20
Registered
787,500,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.10 each 78,750,000 78,750,000 78,750,000 78,750,000
Issued and fully paid up
787,500,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.10 each
(2011 : 785,094,700 ordinary shares of
Baht 0.10 each) 78,750,000 78,509,470 78,750,000 78,509,470
Share premium 77.149.671 75,749,786 77,149,671 75,749,786
Retained earmnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 20 7,875,000 7,875,000 7,875,000 7,875,000
Unappropriated 105,347,778 90,694,938 104,749,00 90,817,773
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 269,122,449 | 252,829,194 | 268,523,671 | 252,952,029
Non-confrolling inferests of the subsidiaries 30 39 - -
Total shareholders’ equity 269,122,479 | 252,829,233 | 268,523,671 | 252,952,029
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 425,870,115 | 389,761,115 | 421,936,886 | 389,571,238

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Unit : Baht)
~
® Consolidated financial statements| Separate financial statements
°
z 2012 2011 2012 2011
Profit or loss :
Revenues
Online information service income 234,952,579 231,283,886 234,952,579 231,283,886
Ofther service income 132,779,827 170,384,422 132,779,827 170,384,422
Other income 13,311,944 11,316,684 13,295,738 11,292,255
Total revenues 381,044,350 412,984,992 381,028,144 412,960,563
Expenses 21
Costs of services 171,186,838 213,336,654 171,186,838 213,336,654
Administrative expenses 97,150,991 83,028,031 97.800,078 82,819,469
Total expenses 268,337,829 296,364,685 268,986,916 296,156,123
Profit before share of profit from
investments in associates, finance
cost and income tax expenses 112,706,521 116,620,307 112,041,228 116,804,440
Share of profit from investment
in associates 200,913 198,651 - -
Profit before finance cost and
income tax expenses 112,907,434 116,818,958 112,041,288 116,804,440
Finance cost (832,683) - (688,081) -
Profit before income tax expenses 112,074,751 116,818,958 111,353,147 116,804,440
Income tax expenses 22 (26,667,185) (30,582,418) (26,667,185) (30,582,418)
Profit for the year 85,407 566 86,236,540 84,685,962 86,222,022
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 85,407,566 86,236,540 84,685,962 86,222,022
Profit attributable to :
Equity holders of the Company 85,407,575 86,236,547 84,685,962 86,222,022
Non-controlling interests of the
subsidiaries ) @D
85,407,566 86,236,540
Earnings per share (Baht) 23
Basic earnings per share
Profit affributable to equity holders
of the Company 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.11
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares (shares) 786,468,218 774,717,610 786,468,218 774,717,610
Diluted earnings per share 23
Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company 0.11 0.1 0.1 0.1
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares (shares) 786,977,297 780,868,572 786,977,297 780,868,572

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS" EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial statements N
Equity attributable to the owner of the Company Equity
- - . attributable
Issued and Retained earnings TOtE}; eqll;llty to Total
. attributable '
paid up Sha.re IAppropriated - U to the owner | non-controlling shareho'lders
share premium | gtatutory nappro= of the interests of equity
capital reserve priated Company [the subsidiaries|
Balance as at 31 December 2010 77,355,000 | 69,030,771 7.875,000 | 80,002,273 | 234,263,044 46 | 234,263,090
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting
policies for employee benefit (Note 4.11) - - - | (6.893.982) | (5.893.982) - (5.893.982)
Additional ordinary share from warrant exercised
(Note 19) 1,164,470 | 6,719,015 - - 7.873.485 - 7.873.485
Dividend paid (Note 27) - - - (69.649,900) | (69.649,900) - | (69.,649,900)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - | 86,236,547 | 86,236,547 @ 86,236,540
Balance as at 31 December 2011 78,509,470 | 75,749,786 7,875,000 | 90,694,938 | 252,829,194 39 252,829,233
Balance as at 31 December 2011 78,609,470 | 75,749,786 | 7,875,000 | 90,694,938 | 252,829,194 39 | 252,829,233
Additional ordinary share from warrant exercised
(Note 19) 240,530 1,399,885 - - 1,640,415 - 1,640,415
Dividend paid (Note 27) - - - [(70.754,735) | (70,754,735) - |(70,754,735)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - | 85407575 85407575 ©® 85,407,566
Balance as at 31 December 2012 78,750,000 | 77,149,671 7,875,000 | 105,347,778 | 269,122,449 30 269,122,479
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
(Unit : Baht)
) . N
Separate financial statements
Retained earnings
Issued and Share - Total
paid up remium Appropriated - ) shareholders’
share capital P Statutory Unappropriated equity
reserve
Balance as at 31 December 2010 77,355,000 69.030,771 7,875,000 80,139,633 234,400,404
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting
policies for employee benefit (Note 4.11) - - - (5.893.982) (5.893.982)
Ad(ditional ordinary share from warrant exercised
(Note 19) 1,154,470 6,719,015 - - 7.873.485
Dividend paid (Note 27) - - - (69.649,900) (69.649.,900)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 86,222,022 86,222,022
Balance as at 31 December 2011 78,509,470 75,749,786 7,875,000 90,817,773 252,952,029
Balance as at 31 December 2011 78,509.470 75,749,786 7,875,000 90,817,773 252,952,029
Addiitional ordinary share from warrant exercised
(Note 19) 240,530 1.399.885 - - 1,640,415
Dividend paid (Note 27) - - - (70,754,735) (70,754,735)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 84,685,962 84,685,962
Balance as at 31 December 2012 78,750,000 77,149,671 7,875,000 104,749,000 268,623,671
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2012 2011 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 112,074,751 116,818,958 111,353,147 116,804,440
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to
net cash provided by (paid from)
operating activities :
Depreciation and amortisation 14,608,049 10,039,806 13,256,970 9.938,004
Loss (gain) on sales and written of
equipment and intangible assets 121,461 (55,513) 121,461 (55,513)
Allowance for impairment loss on assets 726,632 939,501 - 1,339,501
Allowance for impairment loss on
investment in subsidiary - - 4,500,00 -
Allowance for doubtful accounts 9,181,859 - 9,181,859 -
Share of profit from investment in
associates (200,913) (198,651) - -
Provision for long-term employee benefits 945,024 871,987 945,024 871,987
Unrealised loss on exchange 41,108 86,571 41,108 86,571
Other income from reversal of
accrued service cost (4,000,000) - (4,000,000) -
Dividend income (12,250,000) (9.646,875) (12,250,000) (9,646,875)
Inferest expenses 832,683 - 688,081 -
Interest income (687,562) (854,770) (679,775) (830,139
Income from operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities 121,393,092 118,001,014 123,157,875 118,507,976
Decrease (increase) in operating assets :
Trade accounts receivable (25,823,532) (13,388,512) (25,823,532) (13,388,512)
Accrued income (8.561,567) (62,382,818) (8,561,567) (62,382,818)
Other current assets 7,925,760 (13,177,863) 8,123,001 (13,002,380)
Other non current assets (350.,746) (4,000) (298,146) (4,000
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities :
Trade and other payables (24,046,491) 28,274,467 (28,185,421) 28,118,754
Unearned revenue 3,195,858 2,258,692 3,195,858 2,258,692
Information utilization fee payable 183,395 943,212 183,395 943,212
Other current liabilities 2,051,929 4,088,453 5,961,143 3.961,493
Cash flows from operating activities 75,967,698 74,612,645 77,752,606 75,012,417
Cash paid for interest expenses (832,683) - (688,081) -
Cash paid for corporate income tax (29.928,476) (29,658,327) (29.928,476) (29.658,327)
Net cash from operating activities 45,206,539 44,954,318 47,136,049 45,354,090

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial h
statements statements
2012 2011 2012 2011

Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease in temporary investment - 17,000,000 - 17,000,000
Cash paid for investment in subsidiary - - (12,000,000) (5,000,000)
Decrease in restricted bank deposits - 13,000,000 - 13,000,000
Proceeds from sales equipment 3.271 55,677 3,271 55,677
Acquisition of equipment (15,683.214) (8.160,147) (15.,460.,294) (6.829,742)
Acquisition of computer software (19.681,067) (4.441,133) (11,560,150) (1,593,755)
Dividend received 12,250,000 9,646,875 12,250,000 9,646,875
Interest received 745,298 763,866 737,511 739.234
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities |  (22,365,712) 27,865,138 (26,029,662) 27,018,289
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in short-term loans from financial
institutions 36,369,000 - 36,369,000 -
Cash received from additional ordinary

share from warrant exercised 1,640,415 7,873,485 1,640,415 7,873,485
Cash paid for liabilities under financial

agreement (1,018,828) - (298,710) -
Dividend paid (70,754,735) (69.649,900) (70,754,735) (69.649,900)
Net cash used in financing activities (33,764,148) | (61,776,415) (33,044,030 (61,776,415)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flow information :
Non-cash related fransactions from operating
activities
Reserve for long-term employee benefits
Accounts payable for purchase assets

Non-cash related transactions from investing

activities
Assets acquired under financial lease

agreement

(10,923,321)

59,347,148

11,043,041

48,304,107

(11,937,643)

58,219,650

10,595,964

47,623,686

48,423,827

59,347,148

46,282,007

58,219,650

1,574,895

7,819,180

5,893,982

1,574,895

4,307,000

5,893,982
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Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012

1. General information

Business Online Public Company Limited ("The Company”) is a public company incorporated and domiciled
in Thailand. Its major shareholders are Advance Research Group Co., Ltd., which is incorporate in Thailand,
and Keppel Communications Pte. Ltd., which is incorporated in Singapore. Its principal activity is service
provider and developer of local and global financial information system and as an online and offline business
information service provider as well as consulting service and database management. The registered office of
the Company is at 900/8-10 SVOA Tower, Rama Il Road, Kwang Bangpongpang, Khet Yannawa, Bangkok.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated
under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2647 and their presentation has been made in compliance
with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated 28 September
2011, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.
The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the
Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from the Thai language
financial statements.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise

disclosed in the accounting policies.

2.2 Basis of consolidation
a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Business Online Public

Company Limited (“the Company”) and the following subsidiary companies (“the subsidiaries”) :

Percentage of B

) Country of shareholding
Company’s name Nature of business incorporation 2012 2011
Percent Percent
D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Business Information Service Thai 99.99 99.99
iBOL Co., Ltd. Business infelligent tool and Thai 99.99 99.99
software as a service

b)  Subsidiaries are fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

¢) The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant accounting policies
as the Company.

d) Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiary companies have been
eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

e) Non-controling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the subsidiaries that
are not held by the Company and are presented separately in the consolidated profit or loss and

within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.

2.3 The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries and associates under the cost

method, have been prepared solely for the benefit of the public.
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3.

a

b)

New accounting standards not yet effective

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued the following new/revised accounting standards
that are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Accounting standards :

TAS 12 Income Taxes

TAS 20 (revised 2009) Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Govermnment Assistance
TAS 21 (revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Financial Reporting Standard :

TFRS 8 Operating Segments

Accounting Standard Interpretations :

SIC 10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating Activities
SIC 21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets

SIC 25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders

The Company’s management believes that these accounting standards will not have any significant
impact on the financial statements for the year when they are initially applied, except for the following
accounting standard.

TAS 12 Income Taxes

This accounting standard requires an entity to identify temporary differences, which are differences
between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the accounting records and its tax base,
and to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities under the stipulated guidelines. The management
of the Company expects the adoption of this accounting standard to have the effect of increasing
the Company and its subsidiaries” brought-forward retained eamings of the year 2013 by approximately
Baht 9.8 million (the Company only: approximately Bath 9.8 million).

In addition, the Federation of Accounting Professions has issued Notification No. 30/2555 - 34/2555,
published in the Royal Gazette on 17 January 2013, mandating the use of accounting freatment guidance
and accounting standard interpretations as follows.

Effective date

Accounting Treatment Guidance for Transfers of Financial Assets 1 January 2013
Accounting Standard Interpretation :

SIC 29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures 1 January 2014
Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations :

TFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arangement contfains a Lease 1 January 2014
TFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 2014
TFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 January 2014

The management of the Company has assessed the effect of these standards and believes that Accounting
Treatment Guidance for Transfers of Financial Assets, SIC 29, TFRIC 4, TFRIC 12 and TFRIC 13 are not
relevant to the business of the Company.
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4. Significant accounting policies
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4.1
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4.3
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4.5
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Revenue recognition

Rendering of services

Revenues from purchases of limited numbers of hours of access to the Company's information services by
customers, granting users access to information on juristic persons, business news, and information on bankrupts
and auctions due to bankruptcy, are generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the period
of usage stipulated in the agreement. This method is used because such revenues are derived from
sales made direct to customers rather than through distribution agents and because several types
of service are provided to customers simultaneously over a period which has a fixed termination
date. The Company therefore believes that there is no material difference between recognising
revenue based on a straight-line basis and recognising it on hours actually used.

Service income under long-term contracts is recognised on the basis of percentage of completion.
The percentage of completion is determined based on services performed to date as a percentage
of total services to be performed.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments
with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is
provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is
generally based on collection experience and analysis of debt aging.

Investments

a) Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company classifies as other investments,
are stated at cost net of allowance for loss on diminution in value (if any).

b) Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method.

c) Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for in the separate financial statements
using the cost method.

Building improvement and equipment/Depreciation
Building improvement and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for
loss on impairment of assets (if any). Depreciation of building improvement and equipment is calculated
by reference to their costs amounts on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives :
Building improvement 5 years
Equipment and others 3 -5 years
Depreciation is included in determining income.

U 2555



4.6

No depreciation is provided on building under improvement and assets under installation.

An item of building improvement and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from ifs use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of
an asset is included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses (if any).

Infangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic useful life and
tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such intangible assets are reviewed at
least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged to profit or loss.

A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows :

Useful lives

Computer Software 5 years

4.7

4.8

4.9

Related party transactions
Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company,
whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest
in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel,
directors, and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations.

Long-term leases

Leases of equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in long-term payables, while the interest element is charged fo profit or
loss over the lease period. The assets acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the useful
life of the assets.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight line basis over
the lease term.

In cases where assets are sold and then leased back, whereby the transaction is a kind of finance lease,
any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying amount of the assets is recorded as deferred
revenue and amortised over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht ot the exchange rate ruling at the date of the
tfransaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at
the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.
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4.10 Impairment of assets

4.11

4.12

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the building
improvement and equipment and other intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount
of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than

the carrying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as expenses when
incurred.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is monthly contributed
by employees and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in a separate frust fund and the

Company’s contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees upon
retirement under labor law. The Company treats these severance payment obligations as a defined
benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified independent

actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post - employment benefits are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The defined benefits liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation less

unrecognised past service cost and unrecognised actuarial gains or losses.

For the first-time adoption of TAS 19 Employee Benefits in 2011, the Company elected to recognise
the transitional liability, which exceeds the liability that would have been recognised at the same
date under the previous accounting policy, through an adjustment to the beginning balance of

retained earnings in 2011.

Income tax
Income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities,

based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.
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5. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at fimes requires
management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain.
These judgements and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ

from these estimates. Significant judgements and estimates are as follows :

Leases
In determining whether a lease is fo be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the management is
required to use judgement regarding whether significant risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset

has been fransferred, taking info consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.

Allowance for doubtful accounts
In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgement and estimates
based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of oufstanding debts and the

prevailing economic condition.

Building improvement and equipment/Depreciation
In determining depreciation of building improvement and equipment, the management is required to make
estimates of the useful lives and residual values of the building improvement and equipment and fo review

estimate useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review building improvement and equipment for impairment
on a periodical basis and record impairment losses when it is determined that their recoverable amount
is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgements regarding forecast of future revenues and

expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.

Intangible assets

The initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets, and subsequent impairment testing, require
management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by the asset or the cash generating units
and fo choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans
The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial techniques. Such determination
is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase rate, mortality

rate and staff turnover rate.

. Related party transactions

During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business fransactions with ifs related parties.
Such fransactions were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Company
and those related parties and were in ordinary course of business. The significant transactions are

summarised below :
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(Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidated financial | Separate financial )
statements statements Pricing policy
2012 2011 2012 2011
Transaction with related parties
Services income 21 17 21 17 | Market price, Cost plus
margin, Mutually agreed
prices as stipulated in the
Purchase of equipment agreements
8 7 8 6 | Market price
Services fee expense 18 41 16 41 Mutually agreed prices as
stipulated in the agreements

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the outstanding balances between the Company and its related parties

fransactions are as follows :

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial )
statements statements
2012 2011 2012 2011
Trade accounts receivable (Note 8)
Parent company 14 14 14 14
Related companies (Common shareholders
and directors) 4,938 4,588 4,938 4,588
Total trade accounts receivable 4.952 4.602 4.952 4,602
Accrued income
Related companies (Common shareholders
and directors) 1,148 1,060 1,148 1,060
Trade and other payables (Note 16)
Parent company 4,049 22,612 4016 22,611
Related companies (Common shareholders
and directors) 1.947 2,530 1933 2,523
Total tfrade and other payables 5.996 25,142 5.949 25,134

Short-term loans to related parties

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the balance of loans between the Company and those related companies

and the movement are as follows :

Loans to related
parties

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Related by

Consolidated and separate financial statements

~

Balance as at
31 December

Increase

Decrease

Balance as at 31
December 2012

2011 during the year | during the year
iBOL Co., Ltd. Subsidiary company - 2,000 (2,000) -
Total - 2,000 (2,000) -
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Directors and management’s benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Company and its

benefit expenses payable to their directors and management as below.

subsidiaries had employee

(Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial )
statements statements
2012 2011 2012 2011
Short-term employee benefits 18 16 18 16
Post-employment benefits 1 1 1 1
Total 19 17 19 17

7. Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial )
statements statements
2012 20M 2012 20M
Cash 85 83 85 83
Bank deposits 48,339 59,264 46,197 58,136
Total 48,424 59,347 46,282 58,219

As at 31 December 2012, bank deposits carried interests between 0.62 and 1.87 percent per annum

(2011 : between 0.75 and 3.60 percent per annum).

8. Trade accounts receivable

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial )
statements statements
2012 2011 2012 2011
Trade accounts receivable - related parties
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 2,977 3,428 2977 3,428
Past due
Up fo 3 months 1,359 58 1,359 58
3 - 6 months - - - -
6 - 12 months - 1.116 - 1.116
Over 12 months 616 - 616 -
Total 4,952 4,602 4,952 4,602
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial )
statements statements
2012 2011 2012 2011
Trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 32,206 44,513 32,206 44,513
Past due
Up to 3 months 15,605 23,769 15,605 23,769
3 - 6 months - 2 - 2
6 - 12 months 45,909 - 45,909 -
Total 93.720 68,284 93,720 68,284
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts 9.182) - 9.182) -
Total frade accounts receivable - unrelated parties, net 84,538 68,284 84,538 68,284
Total frade account receivable - net 89,490 72,886 89,490 72,886

10.

Restricted banks deposits
These represent fixed deposits pledged with the banks to secure credit facilities and letter of guarantees

issued by the banks.

Investment in subsidiaries

Details of investments in subsidiaries as presented in separate financial statements are as follows :

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Carrying amounts
based on
cost method - net

2012 2011

Allowance for
impairment of
investments

2012 2011

Shareholding
percentage

2012 2011
(%) (%)

Paid-up capital Cost

2012 2011

Company’s
name

2012 2011

D&B

(Thailand) 1,000 1,000 99.99 99.99 1,000 1,000 (400) (400) 600 600

Co., Ltd.

iBOL Co., Ltd.

Total

17,000 5,000

99.99 99.99

17,000

5,000

(4,500) -

12,500

5,000

18,000

6,000

(4,900) (400)

13,100

5,600

146

On 5 March 2012, the Ordinary General Meeting of the shareholders of iBOL Company Limited
(“a subsidiary”) passed a resolution to increase the subsidiary’s registered share capital from Baht
5 million (500,000 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each) to Baht 25 million (2,500,000 ordinary shares of Baht
10 each) through the issuance of 2,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 10 each to the
shareholder (Business Online Public Company Limited). The subsidiary registered the increase in ifs share
capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 19 March 2012. Subsequently, during the year 2012 the

Company had already paid such additional share capital totaling Baht 12 million.

During the year 2012, the Company had set allowance for impairment loss of investment in iBOL Co., Ltd.
of Baht 4.5 millon, which was separately shown in the separate statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2012,
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11.

11.1 Details of associates :

Investment in associated company

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Percentage of Consolidated Separate )
Country off  shareholding [financial statements |financial statements
. . i
Company’s Nature of  incooraion ™5 12T 2011 | 2012 | 2011 2012 | 201
name business (%) (%)
Abiks Development Property
Co., Ltd. Development Thai 20 20 30,606 | 30,405 30,000 30,000

11.2 Share of income and dividend received

During the years, the Company has recognised its share of profit from investment in associate

company in the consolidated financial statements and dividend income in the separate financial

statements as follows :

Company’s name

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial
statements

Separate financial

statements

Share of profit from investment
in associate during the year

Dividend received
during the year

2012 2011

2012

2011

Abiks Development Co., Ltd.

201 199

11.3 Summarised financial information of associate

Financial information of the associated company is summarised below.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Paid-up capital as at
31 December

Total assets as at
31 December

Total liabilities as at
31 December

Total revenues for
the year ended
31 December

Profitfor )

the year ended
31 December

Company’s
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
name
Abiks Development
Co., Ltd. 150,000 | 150,000 | 153,204 | 152,232 174 251 2,107 1,938 1,049 949
12. Other long-term investment
(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Paid - up Percentage| Investment value | Dividend received
Company’s Nature of capital of she.lre- under cost method| during the year
name business 2012 | 2011 | holding | 5015 | 2011 2012 | 2011
National Credit Credit  information
Bureau Co., Ltd. provider 250,000 | 250,000 12.25 27864 27,864 12,250 9.647
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13. Building improvement and equipment

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements h
Building under
Computer improvement
Building Office and and assets
improvement | equipment | equipment | Vehicle inslt‘:[([j:trion Total
Cost
1 January 2011 15,491 7.790 68,523 7.405 - 99,209
Additions 211 366 6,708 - 875 8,160
Disposals - 12 (4.599) - - @.611)
31 December 2011 15,702 8,144 70,632 7.405 875 102,758
Additions 1,308 1,334 14,670 6,541 891 24,744
Disposals - (70 @) - - 72)
Transfers in/out 1,638 an - - (1,521 -
31 December 2012 18,548 9,391 85,300 13.946 245 127,430
(Unit : Thousand Baht)
~
Consolidated financial statements
Building under
Computer improvement
Building Office and angna;:fts
improvement | equipment | equipment | Vehicle installation Total
Accumulated depreciation :
1 January 2011 14,659 6,374 61.819 5,836 - 88,688
Depreciation for the year 410 658 4,689 744 - 6,501
Depreciation on disposals - an (4.599) - - 4.610)
31 December 2011 15,069 7,021 61,909 6,580 - 90,579
Depreciation for the year 659 638 6,435 2,038 - 9,770
Depreciation on disposals - 70 @ - - 72)
31 December 2012 15,728 7.589 68,342 8,618 - 100,277
Net book value :
1 January 2011 832 1416 6,704 1,569 - 10,521
31 December 2011 633 1,123 8,723 825 875 12,179
31 December 2012 2,820 1,802 16,958 5,328 245 27,153
Depreciation for the year
2011 (4.6 included in services cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 6,501
2012 (5.3 included in services cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 9,770
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements h
Building under
Computer improvement
Building | Office and and assets
improvement | equipment | equipment | Vehicle | installation Total
Cost
1 January 2011 15,491 7,768 68,523 7.405 - 99.187
Additions - 119 5,836 - 875 6,830
Disposals - a2 (4,599) - - @.611)
31 December 2011 15,491 7.875 69,760 7,405 875 101,406
Additions 1.302 1.262 11,013 6,541 891 21,009
Disposals - (70 @) - - 72)
Transfers in/out 1,521 - - - (1,521) -
31 December 2012 18,314 9,067 80,771 13,946 245 122,343
Accumulated depreciation :
1 January 2011 14,659 6,354 61,819 5,836 - 88,668
Depreciation for the year 394 646 4,617 744 - 6,401
Depreciation on disposals - an | @599 - - | @e10)
31 December 2011 15,053 6,989 61,837 6,580 - 90,459
Depreciation for the year 612 585 5313 2,038 - 8,548
Depreciation on disposals - (70 @ - - 72)
31 December 2012 15,665 7,504 67,148 8,618 - 98,935
Net book value :
1 January 2011 832 1414 6,704 1,569 - 10,519
31 December 2011 438 886 7.923 825 875 10,947
31 December 2012 2,649 1,563 13,623 5,328 245 23,408
Depreciation for the year
2011 (4.6 included in services cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 6,401
2012 (5.3 included in services cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 8,548

As at 31 December 2012, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but are sfill in use.
The gross carrying amount before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assefs amounted to
approximately Baht 108.63 million (2011: Baht 78.7 million) (The Company only: Baht 108.63 million, 2011
: Baht 78.7 million).

As at 31 December 2012, the Company and its subsidiary company had computer and equipment

under finance lease agreements with net book values amounting to Baht 6.72 million (2011 : nil).
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14. Intangible assets

The net book value of intangible assets as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 is presented below.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements b
Software Software

Computer under Computer under

software | development Total software | development Total
31 December 2012
Cost 59,135 8.878 68,013 57,771 - 57,771
Less Accumulated amortisation|  (39.818) - (39.818) (39,688) - (39.688)
Net book value 19.317 8.878 28,195 18,083 - 18,083
31 December 2011
Cost 43918 4,932 48,850 43,879 2,124 46,003
Less Accumulated amortisation|  (34,981) - (34,981) (34,979 - (34.979)
Net book value 8,937 4,932 13.869 8.900 2,124 11,024

A reconciliation of the net book value of intangible assets for the years 2012 and 2011 is presented

below.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial )
statements statements

2012 2011 2012 2011
Net book value at beginning of year 13,869 12,967 11,024 12,967
Acquisition of computer software 20,022 4,441 11,892 1,594
Disposal - net book value (859) - (124) -
Depreciation charged for the year (4.837) (3539 4,709 (3.537)
Net book value at end of year 28,195 13,869 18,083 11,024

15. Short-term loans from financial institutions

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2012 2011 2012 2011
Short-term loans from financial institutions MLR - 0.5 36,369 - 36,369 -
Total 36,369 - 36,369 -

150

A short-term loan and credit facilities from bank are secured by the fransfer of accounts receivable

collection rights under contract/project as specified in credit facilities agreement with that bank as

amount of debt from loan.
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16. Trade and other payables

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements

2012 2011 2012 2011
Trade accounts payable - related parties 2,491 20,978 2,491 20,970
Trade accounts payable - unrelated parties 3,923 4,923 3923 4,863
Accrued cost - related parties 1,612 4,084 1,612 4,084
Accrued cost - unrelated parties 6177 16,761 6,177 16,761
Accrued expenses - related parties 569 80 569 80
Accrued expenses - unrelated parties 4,547 - 4,547 -
Other payables - related parties 1.324 - 1,277 -
Other payables - unrelated parties 2,096 2,382 2,080 2,264
Total trade and other payables 22,739 49,208 22,676 49,022

17. liabilities under finance lease agreements

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial )
statements statements

2012 2011 2012 2011
Liabilities under finance lease agreements 7.371 - 4,345 -
Less : Deferred interest expenses &7 - 337) -
Total 6,800 - 4,008 -
Less : Portion due within one year (2,527) - (1,384) -
Liabilities under finance lease agreements -

net of current portion 4,273 - 2,624 -

The Company and its subsidiary have entered info the finance lease agreements with leasing companies for

rental of equipment for use in their operations, whereby they are committed to pay rental on a monthly

basis. The terms of the agreements are generally 3 years.

Future minimum lease payments required under the finance lease agreements were as follows :

(Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements R
As at 31 December 2012
Less than 1 year 1-3 years Total
Future minimum lease payments 2.9 4.5 7.4
Deferred interest expenses 0.5 0.2) 0.6)
Present value of future minimum lease payments 2.5 4.3 6.8
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(Unit : Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

~

As at 31 December 2012

Less than 1 year 1-3 years Total
Future minimum lease payments 1.6 2.7 4.3
Deferred interest expenses ©.2) ©.1 0.3)
Present value of future minimum lease payments 1.4 2.6 4.0

18. Provision for long-term employee benefits
Provision for long-term employee benefits, which is compensations on employees’ retirement, was as

follows :

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial

Separate financial

statements statements
2012 2011 2012 2011
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 6.766 5,894 6,766 5,894
Current service cost 668 630 668 630
Inferest cost 277 242 277 242
Provisions for long-term employee benefits at
end of year 7711 6,766 7.711 6,766

Long-term employee benefit expenses included in the profit or loss was as follows :

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial R
statements statements
2012 2011 2012 2011
Current service cost 668 630 668 630
Interest cost 277 242 277 242
Total expense recognized as administrative
expenses in profit or loss 945 872 945 872

Principal actuarial assumptions at the valuation date were as follows :

Consolidated financial
statements

Separate financial
statements

2012
(% per annum)

2011
(% per annum)

2012
(% per annum)

2011
(% per annum)

Discount rate
Future salary increase rate (depending on age
of employee)

Staff turnover rate
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4.1%
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0% - 25%

4.1%

5% - 9%
0% - 25%

4.1%

5% - 9%
0% - 25%

4.1%

5% - 9%
0% - 25%




Amounts of defined benefit obligation for the current and previous two years are as follows :

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Defined benefit obligation D
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Year 2012 7,711 7,711
Year 2011 6,766 6,766
Year 2010 5,894 5,894

19. Share capital and warrants

20.

21.

On 31 August 2007, the Company issued 3.75 million warrants (ESOP) to subscribe the Company’s
ordinary shares. These warrants were allotted to the directors and/or employee, free of charge.
These warrants are exercisable every six months for a period of 5 years from the issue and offering
date. The exercise ratio of the warrant is 1 : 1 at the exercise price of Baht 7 per 1 ordinary share.

Later, the General Meetings of the Company’s shareholders passed a resolution approving continual
revision of the exercise price of the warrants each year until 2011. Presently, the exercise price of the
warrants is Baht 0.682 per share, in accordance with the conditions stipulated in the warrant
allotment plan.

During 2011, the Company registered its issued and paid-up share capital in respect of exercised
warrants which were issued to directors and/or employees for 11,544,700 shares. Consequently, the
Company’s issued and paid-up share capital increased from Baht 77.36 million to Baht 78.51 million
and the share premium increased from Baht 69.03 million to Baht 75.75 million

On 6 June 2012, the Company registered its issued and paid-up share capital in respect of exercised
warrants which were issued to directors and/or employees for 2,405,300 shares. Consequently, the
Company’s issued and paid-up share capital increased from Baht 78.51 million to Baht 78.75 million
and the share premium increased from Baht 75.75 million to Baht 77.15 million.

Therefore, there was completely exercised warrants in May 2012 (31 December 2011 : There was 2.41
million unexercised warrants).

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set
aside to a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit
brought forward (if any), unfil the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital. The statutory
reserve is not available for dividend distribution. At present, the statutory reserve has fully been set aside.

Expenses by nature
Significant expenses by nature are as follows :
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial )
statements statements

2012 2011 2012 2011
Costs of database management system 74,067 84,283 73,997 84,275
Cost of projects 53,424 87,544 53,424 87,544
Salaries and wages and other employee benefits 68,912 59.331 68,581 59,225
Directors’” remuneration and consultant fee 13,722 13,385 13,722 13,385
Depreciation 9.770 6,501 8,548 6,401
Amortisation expenses 4,837 3,639 4,709 3,637
Rental expenses from operating lease agreements 9.274 8,451 8,794 8,451
Marketing expenses 5,446 7.241 5,443 7.241
Electricity charges 3,926 3,406 3.841 3,388

22. Corporate income tax
Corporate income tax for the year ended 31 December 2012 was calculated the rate of 23 percent
(2011 : 25 and 30 percent) on net income affer adding back provisions and certain expenses which
are disallowable for tax computation purposes

23. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company (excluding other comprehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

Diluted eamings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company (excluding other comprehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares which would
need fo be issued to convert all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The calculation
assumes that the conversion took place either at the beginning of the year or on the date the potential

ordinary shares were issued.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share :

Consolidated financial statements B
Profit for the year Weight average number Earnings per share
of ordinary shares
(Thousand | (Thousand | (Thousand | (Thousand | 2012 | 2011
Baht) Baht) shares) shares)
Basic earnings per share
Profit aftributable to equity holders
of the Company 84,501 86,237 786,468 774,718 0.11 0.11
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Warrants - ESOP (2011 : 2,405,300 units) - - 509 6,151
Diluted earnings per share
Profit of ordinary shareholders assuming
the conversion of warrants to ordinary
shares 84,501 86,237 786,977 780,869 0.11 0.11
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Separate financial statements

Profit for the year

Weight average number
of ordinary shares

Earnings per share

2012 2011 2012 2011
(Thousand | (Thousand | (Thousand | (Thousand 2012 2011
Baht) Baht) shares) shares) (Baht) (Baht)
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company 84,686 86,222 786,468 774,718 0.11 0.1
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares -
Warrants - ESOP (2011 : 2,405,300 units) - 509 6,151
Diluted earnings per share
Profit of ordinary shareholders
assuming the conversion of warrants
to ordinary shares 84,686 86,222 786,977 780,869 0.11 0.11

24. Promotional privileges

The subsidiary company has been granted promotional privileges under the Investment Promotion
Act B.E. 2520 by the Board of Investment under certain significant conditions. Significant privileges

of the subsidiary company are as follows :

. )
Details iBOL Co., Ltd.
1. Certificate No. 2282(7)/2554
2. Promotional privileges for Software

3. The significant privileges are:

3.1 Exemption from corporate income tax on net income from

promoted operations for a period of 8 years commencing

as from the datfe of first earning operating income.

Furthermore, accumulated losses incurred during the corporate

income tax exemption period, the subsidiary allowed to utilise

the losses as a deduction against net income for a period of

5 years after the expiry of the tax exemption period, whether

from any one year or from several years.

3.2 Exemption from income tax on dividends paid from the income

of the promoted operations for which corporate income tax is

exempted, throughout the corporate income tax exemption.

3.3 Exemption from import duty on imported machinery for use in

production as approved by the Board.

4. Date of first earning operating income

Not yet commenced

Granted

Throughout the period

of promoted

Not yet commenced

During the current year, the subsidiary company has yet to exercise the privileges under the promotion

certificate because it is in the process of fulfilling the conditions as stipulated in the certificate.
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25.

26.

Financial information by segment

The Company operates its business in a single segment of business as an online and offline information
service provider and developer of financial news and other information services, and carries on it business
mostly in the single geographic area in Thailand. As a result, all of the revenues, operating profits and
assets as reflected in these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned business segment and
geographic area. Overseas service income for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to Baht
30.11 million. (2011 : Baht 22.2 million)

Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the
Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both employees and the Company contribute to the fund monthly at the
rate of 3 percent of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by TISCO Finance Public Company
Limited, will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules. During the
year 2012, the Company contributed Baht 1.10 million (2011 : Baht 1.0 million) to the fund.

27. Dividends
Total dividends | Dividend per share |
Dividends Approved b .
PP y (Million Baht) (Baht per share)
Final dividends for 2010 Annual General Meeting of the shareholders
on 5 April 2011 39 0.05
Interim dividends for 2011 Board of Directors’ meeting on
9 August 2011 31 0.04
Total paid in 2011 70 0.09
Final dividends for 2011 Annual General Meeting of the shareholders
on 29 March 2012 39 0.05
Interim dividends for 2012 Board of Directors’ meeting on
9 August 2012 32 0.04
Total paid in 2012 71 0.09
28. Commitments and contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Company and its subsidiaries have commitments and
contingent liabilities other than these disclosed in other notes as follows :

28.1 Service agreements

The Company has entered info agreements with two government enterprises to obtain the right to
operate an online business information service and nationwide online information on bankrupts
and auctions due to bankruptcy and on 23 April 2012, the Company extended the agreement
for 5 years with a government enterprise (2016 - 2020) to obtain the right to operate an online
business information service. The agreement will be terminated in December 2020. In addition,
the Company signed in the memorandum of understanding of the cooperation of business
information service which the term of such memorandum is 15 years (2021 - 2035). The Company
has to pay the fee at the fixed rate of service income or minimum guarantee for per year as
specified in the agreements and such memorandum in order to continue the project. In addition,
the Company and its subsidiaries entered into service agreements related to cost of providing
services with other companies. As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the future payments under
these service agreements are due as follow :
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(Unit : Million Baht)

As at 31 December B
2012 2011
Payable :
Inup fo 1 year 37.90 25.83
In over 1 and up to 5 years 107.63 69.38
In over 5 years 250.75 -

282 Capital expenditure agreement
As at 31 December 2012, the Company has no outstanding commitment which has entered into

agreements for development of its computer system with two companies (2011 : Baht 2.82 million).

28.3 License agreements

a) An agreement with a related company and an overseas company granting the Company for
the rights to utilize software applications to another related company. Under the agreement,
the Company is obliged to pay a fee at a certain percentage of revenues earned from the
use of such service as stipulated in the agreement. The agreement does not stipulate a
definite term.

b) An agreement with an overseas company sharing of such revenues from utilization of the
analysis system for customer payment information. Under the agreement, the Company is
obliged to pay a fee at a certain percentage of revenues earned from the use of such

service as stipulated in the agreement. The agreement does not stipulate a definite term.

284 Bank guarantees
There were outstanding bank guarantees of Baht 22.83 million (2011: Baht 17.89 million) issued
by a bank on behalf of the Company in respect of certain performance bonds as required in the

normal course of business to guarantee contractual performance.
29. Financial instruments

29.1 Financial risk management
The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No.107 “Financial
Instruments : Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, frade
accounts receivable, loans, investments and short-term loan. The financial risks associated with

these financial instruments and how they are managed is described below.

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to frade accounts receivable, loans
and other receivable. The Company manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control
policies and procedures and therefore does not expect to incur material financial losses. In addition,
the Company does not have high concentrations of credit risk since it has a large customer base
and the major customers are almost financial institutes, state enterprises and government unit.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of receivables, loans and

other receivables as stated in the statement of financial position
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Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks, bank overdrafts
and short-term borrowings. However, since most of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities
bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate, the interest

rate risk is expected to be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 classified by type of
interest rate are summarised in the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that
carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this

occurs before the maturity date.

(Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2012 R
Fixed interest rates Effective
Floating Non- interest
Within 1-5 Over interest | interest rate (% per
1 year years 5 years rate bearing Total annum)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent - - - 35.99 12.43 48.42 |0.62- 187
Trade accounts receivable - - - - 89.49 89.49
Deposits at bank with restrictions 17.00 - - - - 1700 [1.85-2.13
17.00 - - 35.99 101.92 154.91
Financial liabilities
Short-term loan from financial
institution - - - 36.37 - 36.37 | MLR - 0.50
Trade accounts payable - - - - 22.74 22.74
- - - 36.37 22.74 59.11

(Unit : Million Baht)

Separate financial statements as at 31 December 2012 R
Fixed interest rates Effective
Floating Non- interest
Within 1-5 Over interest | interest rate (% per
1 year years 5 years rate bearing Total annum)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent - - - 33.86 12.42 4628 | 0.62 - 1.87
Trade accounts receivable - - - - 89.49 89.49
Deposits at bank with restrictions 17.00 _ _ - - 17.00 | 1.85-2.13
17.00 - - 33.86 101.91 152.77
Financial liabilities
Short-term loan from financial
institution - - - 36.37 - 36.37 | MLR - 0.50
Trade accounts payable - - - - 22.68 22.68
- - - 36.37 22.68 59.05
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(Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2011 R
Fixed interest rates Effective
Floating Non- interest
Within 1-5 Over interest | interest rate (% per
1 year years 5 years rate bearing Total annum)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 30.07 - - 26.82 2.45 59.34 |0.75 - 3.60
Trade accounts receivable - - - - 72.89 72.89
Deposits at bank with restrictions 17.00 - - - - 17.00 [1.85-2.13
47.07 - - 26.82 75.34 149.23
Financial liabilities
Trade accounts payable - - - - 49.20 49.20

(Unit : Million Baht)

Separate financial statements as at 31 December 2011 R
Fixed interest rates Effective
Floating Non- interest
Within 1-5 Over interest | interest rate (% per
1 year years 5 years rate bearing Total annum)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 30.07 - - 26.70 1.45 58.22 |0.75 - 3.60
Trade accounts receivable - - - - 72.89 72.89
Deposits at bank with restrictions|  17.00 - - - - 17.00 [1.85-2.13
47.07 - - 26.70 74.34 148.11
Financial liabilities
Trade accounts payable - - - - 49.02 49.02

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from purchasing or rendering services

transactions that are denominated in foreign currencies. The Company has not entered into any

contract in order to protect such foreign currency risk.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curencies are sutnmarised below.

Consolidated and separated financial statements )
Foreign Financial assets Financial liabilities Average exchange rate
currency as at 31 December as at 31 December as at 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 ‘ 2011
(Million) (Million) (Million) (Million) |(Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
US DOLLAR 0.19 0.15 0.11 0.21 30.6316 31.6912
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29.2 Fair values of financial instruments
Since the majority of the Company’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or bear floating
interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented

in statement of financial position.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between
knowledgeable, wiling parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is determined by
reference to the market price of the financial instruments or by using an appropriate valuation

technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.

30. Capital management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has appropriate capital
structure in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. As at 31 December 2012, the Group's
debt-to-equity rafio was 0.59 : 1 (2011 : 0.54 :1) and the Company's was 0.57 : 1 (2011 : 0.54 :1).

31. Subsequent
On 20 February 2013, the Board of Director Meeting of the Company No.1/2013 passed a resolution to
propose for the significant matters as follows :
1) Approval of additional payment of dividend at a rate of Baht 0.05 per share from the net profit of
2012, totaling of Baht 39.38 million. Thus, including the inferim dividend of Baht 0.04 per share, the
total dividend payment out of 2012 profit amounted to Baht 0.09 per share.

The payment of dividend will later be proposed for approval in the Annual General Meeting of the
Company’s shareholders.

2) Approval of the principle of dissolving of business operation and other relevant process of iBOL Co., Ltd.
In March 2013, the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of iBOL Co., Ltd. will consider

and approve the dissolving of business operation and liquidation.

32. Approval of financial statements
These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on
20 February 2013.
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